
Village of Forest Park, Illinois 
517 Des Plaines Avenue 

Forest Park, Illinois 60130 
Phone: 708-366-2323 / Fax: 708-488-0361 

Web: www.forestpark.net 

 
Regular Village Council Meeting Agenda 

Monday, July 25, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 

Meeting will be conducted In-Person and Via Zoom 

You may listen to the meeting by participating in a Zoom conference call as follows:  
Dial-In Number: 312-626-6799; Meeting ID 88422877838; Passcode 637791 or by clicking here: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88422877838?pwd=WVpFZDJjSnRzaWxvcHpvY3M4RUZ1QT09 

Public Comments are required to be submitted to the Village Clerk in advance of the meeting: 
In-Person Comments: Complete and submit Speaker Sign-In Form to Village Clerk prior to 7:00 p.m. 

E-mail Comments: E-mail required to be sent to Village Clerk (vmoritz@forestpark.net) prior to 6:30 p.m. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
2. ROLL CALL 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. July 11, 2022 Village Council Meeting 
b. July 11, 2022 Closed Session Meeting 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
5. COMMUNICATIONS 
6. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

a. Police Department Report 
7. BILLS BY RESOLUTION 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Ordinance Adopting the FY2023 Appropriation Ordinance for Fiscal Year Beginning May 1, 2022 
and Ending April 30, 2023 for the Village of Forest Park 

b. Ordinance Waiving Bid and Authorizing the Acceptance of a Proposal for Installation of Alarm 
Equipment and Monitoring Services By and Between Illinois Alarm Service, Inc. and the Village of 
Forest Park 

c. Ordinance Approving and Authorizing the Execution of a Supplemental License Agreement for Use 
of Certain Village Infrastructure in Rights of Way By and Between Chicago SMSA Limited 
Partnership D/B/A Verizon Wireless and the Village of Forest Park, Illinois 

d. Motion to approve re-appointment of Tim Gillian to Board of Fire and Police Commissioners – 
Term to Expire April 30, 2025 

e. Resolution Confirming the Appointment of the Members to the Forest Park Fire and Police 
Commission 

f. Resolution Authorizing the Submission of an Application for USAR Real Property Exchange for the 
United States Armed Forces Reserve Center Located in Forest Park, Illinois (7402 Roosevelt Road) 

g. Resolution Approving and Authorizing the Execution of a Professional Engineering Services 
Proposal for Phase II Design Engineering Services By and Between Christopher B. Burke 



Engineering, Ltd. and the Village of Forest Park for the Wilcox Street Watermain and Resurfacing 
Project 

h. Resolution Approving the Specifications and Authorizing the Advertising of Bids for the Village of 
Forest Park 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project 

i. Resolution Approving the Specifications and Authorizing the Advertising of Bids for the Village of 
Forest Park Van Buren Street Multi-Use Path Improvements Project 

j. Motion to approve Exit Strategy Brewing Company Entertainment License Application (7700 W. 
Madison) 

k. Approval of request by Forest Park Public Library for use of The Grove for October 1 Kids Concert 
event 

l. Approval of request by the Knights of Columbus to solicit funds at various intersections on 
September 16 and 17, 2022 

m. Approval of 2022 Casket Races banner request - Forest Park Chamber of Commerce & 
Development 

n. Approval of banner request by Sarah’s Inn regarding Domestic Violence Action Month 
o. Approval of banner request by Forest Park Theatre regarding August 5-14 performance events 

10. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
11. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 



THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, JULY 11, 2022 
 
 

Mayor Hoskins led all assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:00 p.m.  
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call.   
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by Commissioner Maxham that the minutes from 
the June 27, 2022, Regular Meeting of the Council be approved without reading as each member has 
received a copy thereof.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by Commissioner Maxham that the minutes from 
the June 27, 2022, Special Meeting of the Council be approved without reading as each member has 
received a copy thereof.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mr. Joseph Sullivan, encouraged the members of the council to continue discussions with respect to 
the return of video gaming, to offset budget shortfalls. 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
None 



 2 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
The Fire Department submitted its June, 2022 Report. 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF BILLS: 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Resolution for the payment of 
bills be adopted.  The bills totaled $442,947.85. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
None 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution approving the 
specifications and authorizing the advertising of bids for the 
Village of Forest Park Fire Department Roof Rehabilitation 
Project be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution approving Pay 
Request #1 (Final) for the Harlem Avenue and Harrison Street 
Emergency Water Main Interconnect Abandonment from 
Galaxy Underground, Inc. be adopted. 
 

 

 
 

R-58-22 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 
BILLS IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$442,947.85 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-59-22 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

SPECIFICATIONS AND 
BIDDING FOR FIRE 

DEPARTMENT ROOF 
PROJECT 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-60-22 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

PAYMENT FOR 
HARLEM/HARRISON 

INTERCONNECT 
ABANDONMENT 

APPROVED 



 3 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero to appoint Ms. Cara Smith to the Forest 
Park Board of Fire and Police Commissioners. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham to appoint Ms. Heather Vickery to the 
Forest Park Recreation Board. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Resolution confirming the 
appointment of the members to the Forest Park Recreation 
Board be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero to approve the entertainment license 
application submitted by Lathrop House Café, 26 Lathrop 
Avenue. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CARA SMITH APPOINTED 
TO BOARD OF FIRE AND 

POLICE COMMISSIONERS 
APPROVED BY MOTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HEATHER VICKERY 
APPOINTED TO 

RECREATION BOARD 
APPROVE BY MOTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-61-22 
RESOLUTION CONFIRMING 

TERMS OF RECREATION 
BOARD MEMBERS 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LATHROP HOUSE CAFÉ 
ENTERTAINMENT LICENSE 

APPROVED BY MOTION 
 
 



 4 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
 
Administrator Amidei reminded the public about the stoop session being held tonight, as well as the 
Groovin’ in the Grove next Tuesday.  Mr. Amidei further reported that he is volunteering at the No 
Gloves National Softball Tournament. 
 
 
COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS: 
 
Commissioner Nero stated that the village is looking for more volunteers to serve on the village’s 
boards and commissions, especially the Safety and Traffic Commission.  The commissioner further 
reminded residents that yard waste and leaves are picked up in the alley on trash day until October 
1st, when leaves can be raked into the street for curbside pickup.  Last, Commissioner Nero 
commended Public Works Director, Sal Stella, on a fine job. 
 
Commissioner Voogd stated that there has been a lot of interest from citizens about volunteering on 
the Recreation Board, however there are still a couple spots still vacant.  The commissioner thanked 
those who have applied for membership and those who volunteer. 
 
 
 
  

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Nero moved and Commissioner 
Byrnes seconded to adjourn into closed session pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2© to consider the purchase 
or lease of real property and collective bargaining matters. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Hoskins declared the meeting adjourned at 7:13 P.M. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  

 
 

Vanessa Moritz 
Village Clerk 









UCR STATS 2022
Jan Feb Mar Apr MayJun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD 

Felony Arrests 5 10 11 8 13 8 55

Misdemeanor Arrests 32 32 46 20 37 54 221

Warrant Arrests 10 8 5 16 7 14 60

DUI Arrests 4 2 1 0 2 0 9

Suspended License Arrests 9 10 13 8 18 16 74

Traffic Citations Issued 81 66 93 59 109 105 513

Traffic Crashes 47 45 62 64 64 74 356

Vehicular Hijackings 1 1 0 0 0 0 2

Total 1071

Police Reports 374 285 301 304 329 376 1969

INDEX CRIME OFFENSES
Criminal Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Forcible Rape 1 1 1 1 3 1 8

Robbery 3 6 2 4 1 1 17

Agg. Assault/Agg Battery 1 5 2 1 2 1 12

Burglary 3 2 6 5 15 7 38

Theft 17 18 26 27 32 38 158

Motor Vehicle Theft 1 5 5 2 10 3 26

Arson 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 259

INDEX CRIME ARRESTS
Criminal Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Forcible Rape 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Robbery 0 2 2 1 1 0 6

Agg. Assault/Agg Battery 1 2 1 0 2 0 6

Burglary 2 0 0 0 2 0 4

Theft 2 3 8 4 3 5 25

Motor Vehicle Theft 0 0 0 1 0 0 1

Arson 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 42

DRUG CRIME ARRESTS
Cannabis Control Act 0 1 2 0 0 1 4

Controlled Substance 2 1 2 1 1 0 7

Hypodermic Needle/Syringe 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Drug Paraphernalia 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Methamphetamine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 12



May / June 2022 

Following are activities related to the Forest Park Police Department that took place in May and June 

2022: 

• 5-02-22 – Lieutenant Promotional Exam Oral Interviews – Sgts. Miller, Pater, and 

Stasinopoulos

• 5-03-22 – Lieutenant Steve Zanoni Retired – Start Date 4-01-94

• 5-05-22 – Lieutenant Promotional List – 1. Sgt. Miller 2. Sgt. Pater 3. Sgt. Stasinopoulos

• 5-06-22 – Polish American Police Association 56th Annual Awards Banquet Honoring Oak Park 
Police Officer Ken Tworek – Attended by Sgt. Miller and Ofc. Marti

• 5-09-22 – Recruitment – Western Illinois University – Sgt. Miller and Sgt. Reilly



• 5-09-22 – Students from Field Stevenson toured the police department 

 

• 5-10-22 – 21st Annual Peace Officers Ceremony of Recognition and Remembrance – Morton 

College to Cermak Woods – Aux. Ofc. Curtis 

• 5-13-22 to 5-16-22 – National Police Week in Washington D.C. – Sgt. Miller and Ofc. Marti 

 



 

 

 



• 5-14-22 – Stickney/Forest View Little League and Soccer Parade – Aux Ofc. Curtis 

• 5-17-22 – Ofc. Robert Kendall Retired – Start Date 5-16-94 

• 5-21-22 – Forest Park St. Patrick’s Day Parade – A total of thirty-eight full time officers, part time 

officers, auxiliary officers, parking enforcement officers and call takers worked during the parade 

detail. 

• 5-21-22 – Oak Park PD Awards Ceremony – Forest Park PD Officers receiving awards -- Sgt. 

Stasinopoulos, Ofc. Cannon, Ofc. McClintock, Ofc. Arroyo – Chief Gross attended. 

• 5-25-22 – Running for Heroes honored Ofc. Nicholas Kozak #241 in April 2022 -- 

https://running4heroes.org/ -- letter forwarded to the Forest Park PD from the widow of Ofc. 

Kozak 

• 5-27-22 – Promotions – Sgt. Dan Miller to Lieutenant and Det. Jarlath Heveran to Sergeant 

 

 

• 5-30-22 – Memorial Day Ceremony at 7501 Harrison St – Sgt. Reilly 

• 6-04-22 – LaGrange Pet Parade – Aux. Ofc. Curtis 

• 6-12-22 – Law Enforcement Torch Run – Raising money for Special Olympics Illinois – Sgt. 

Defors and Ofc.O’Connor 

• 6-19-22 – Juneteenth Parade Support – Full-time, part-time, and auxiliary officers and 

parking enforcement personnel. 

 

























 

Criminal Investigations Division 

May and June 2022 

 

 

The Forest Park Police Department’s (FPPD) Criminal Investigation Division (CID) is supervised by Lt. 

Pete Morrissette. Two detectives are assigned to CID; Det. Jarlath Heveran and Det. Joe Schick.  Det. 

Mike O’Connor is the police department’s Community Policing / Crime Free Housing Officer.  LaShan 

Riggins, the Forest Park Police Department’s Evidence Custodian, is a member of CID and aside from 

her evidence custodian duties performs administrative duties for the investigators, and assists the 24-

hour desk, parking, and records when needed.  There is a counselor assigned to the department from 

Amita Health Behavioral Health Clinician.  Our Police Crisis Services Worker is Evelyn Simmons. 

Evelyn is outsourced to the Forest Park Police Department four (4) days a week and has office space 

within the CID building located at 501 Desplaines Ave. 

Police incident reports are reviewed by the Investigations Division every working day. Incidents that 

have victims wishing to sign a complaint against an offender are assigned to a detective for further 

review in an effort to develop a suspect(s), conduct interviews, and gather evidence to effect an arrest 

and present a winnable case in criminal court.  Some incidents are turned over to Evelyn Simmons 

should there be a need for outreach from her organization, mainly in reference to mental health 

concerns.  Other incidents such as neighbor or landlord tenant disputes, are forwarded to Det. Mike 

O’Connor so he can intervene and possibly mediate or offer eviction advice. Problem properties may be 

deemed a nuisance by Det. O’Connor should they meet the criteria established under the village 

ordinance. 





• Detective Schick investigated numerous garage burglaries that occurred when a suspect 

was arrested directly after one burglary. During the course of his lengthy investigation, 

Detective Schick collected video surveillance footage, interviewed witnesses and victims, 

obtained search warrants, and interrogated the suspect. Detective Heveran assisted in the 

investigation, conducting leg work on identifying stolen property and retrieving surveillance 

footage. Several victims were able to identify property stolen from them and were able to 

have their belongings returned to them. Detective Schick ultimately was able to charge the 

suspect with three separate burglaries as well as with possession of stolen property. 

 

• Detective Schick investigated an aggravated domestic battery incident in which a woman 

was run over by her boyfriend as he drove away during an argument, and left her injured 

with a broken leg in an alley. After an extensive search for the offender, investigators were 

alerted to his location at a bar in Berwyn, where he was placed in to custody. Detective 

Schick charged him accordingly. 

 

• Detective Heveran responded to the area of a shots fired call with patrol units. Although no 

victim or offender was found in the area, he investigated further by examining video 

surveillance footage from a condominium building. While reviewing this footage, Detective 

Heveran discovered that the incident was captured, depicting a domestic fight between a 

man and a woman. The man attempted to run the woman over with his vehicle, and after 

he drove away, the woman pulled a handgun from her purse and fired a shot in his 

direction. After reviewing this, Detective Heveran found the man’s vehicle parked in the 

garage, and the woman walking toward it. He conducted an investigative stop and placed 

her in to custody. Although the woman was uncooperative with police, investigators 

obtained intelligence information that the vehicle may contain drugs and weapons. A 

search warrant was obtained. Two handguns and a large quantity of suspect fentanyl was 

found inside the vehicle. The woman was charged with aggravated discharge of a firearm, 

and the investigation in to the drugs and weapons is continuing. 

 

• Lieutenant Morrissette located a vehicle that fled from a traffic stop by Forest Park officers 

parked in Chicago. A man matching the description of the offender was seen walking to 

the vehicle, and he subsequently admitted to fleeing from police. He was placed in to 

custody and the vehicle towed. That vehicle is being seized by this department in 

accordance with Illinois asset forfeiture law. 

 

• Detective Heveran assisted patrol units and WESTAF in investigating a fatal crash in 

which a bicyclist was killed in a collision with a truck on the roadway. Detective Heveran 

put out information to neighboring departments and was able to identify the bicyclist as a 

resident of Berwyn. Detective Heveran sought out any surveillance footage in the area that 

may have depicted the accident. The case was ultimately cleared as accidental with no 

charges against the driver of the truck. 

 

• A murder investigation from 2021 was closed when Detective Heveran learned that the 

known suspect was found dead in Chicago. This incident was a stabbing that was 

captured on video surveillance camera, and the offender was identified and who admitted 

to being the person on camera. Despite the evidence collected, police were not yet able to 

obtain charges from the Cook County State’s Attorney Office. Detective Heveran and 



Lieutenant Morrissette visited with the victim’s wife and informed her of the offender’s 

demise, and that this case is now closed due to the certainty of who the offender is, and 

that he is now deceased. 

 

• Detective Heveran investigated commercial burglaries that occurred along Harlem Ave to 

restaurant businesses. Through coordination with the Elmwood Park Police, he was able 

to identify a suspect. That suspect was subsequently arrested in Chicago during the 

commission of another burglary. Detective Heveran was able to secure felony burglary 

charges against the offender. 

 

• Detective Schick obtained video surveillance footage from Chicago Transit Authority that 

confirmed allegations made by a train rider that a man had approached her, held her 

down, and attempted to touch her in a sexual manner. The man was subsequently 

charged with aggravated battery. 

 

 

Forest Park Criminal Investigations Division members are experienced and dedicated 

public servants who have built and continue to maintain professional relationships within 

the community and with neighboring agencies in an effort to quash criminal activity and to 

solve as many cases as possible.  



 

Accident Investigation 
On 21 May 2022 a bicyclist was struck and passed away from his injuries on Roosevelt 
Road at the mall exit across from the Dollar Store. After an examination of the scene, 
and video taken from inside the striking truck, a drafted report indicated the subject at 
fault was the bicyclist and recommended the case be closed.  
 
LESO  
The Forest Park Police Department obtained the following equipment free of charge 
from LESO: Single acquisition through LESO - 4 cases disinfecting wipes  
 
Special Response Team (SRT) 
There were no SRT activation for the months of May and June. 
 
Special Response Team Training  
The SRT did not conduct training for the months of May and June 2022.  The next 
training is June 2022.    
 
Neighborhood Watch  
Nothing to Report  
 
Auxiliary Unit  
The Auxiliary Unit was active for the month(s) of May and June;  
 
Madison Street foot patrols  
May 10th – Police Officer’s Memorial Foundation Motorcade 
May 14th – Grant White School (school run)  
May 14th – Stickney Parade  
June 18th – Juneteenth Parade in the am and evening pool party at the Park District  
June 18th – Brookfield Pet Parade  
 
The next meeting will be held in August and will be discussing the Rib Fest and the 
other upcoming events throughout the Village.   
 
 
 
 
 



R E S O L U T I O N  No.

               BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 

that we dispense with the reading of the individual bills inasmuch as each department head has approved

and signed bills in the following aggregate amount for their respective departments.

Refunds and Allocations 3,124.33$         

Public Affairs 10,353.86$       

Police Department 1,663.56$         

Community Center 549.45$           

Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 44,616.43$       

Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 254,648.50$     

Department of Health & Safety 6,780.00$         

Street Department 23,538.48$       

Public Property 51,702.96$       

Seizure 1,182.00$         

Federal Custom 23,907.29$       

Police Vehicle Replacement 13,358.45$       

TIF 63,694.25$       

VIP 22,659.40$       

Water Department 397,836.13$     

TOTAL 919,615.09$     

  ADOPTED BY THE Council of the Village of Forest Park this 25th Day of July, 2022.

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

___________________________

Rory Hoskins, Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-00-000-2001-002  Franzen Plumbing Inc 03/07/2022 400.00         

100-00-000-2001-002 Jose Reyes Protile Construction 09/01/2021 400.00         

100-00-000-2002-006  Municipal Collection Services 06/30/2022 50.36           

100-00-000-4220-300  Total Parking Solutions Inc 07/05/2022 209.00         

100-00-000-4450-121  Passport Labs Inc 06/30/2022 88.06           

100-00-000-4450-130  Passport Labs Inc 06/30/2022 1,903.65      

100-00-000-4450-140  Passport Labs Inc 06/30/2022 73.26           

Refund and Allocations 3,124.33      



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-10-101-6100-135  GPG Strategies LLC 06/30/2022 2,000.00      

100-10-101-6120-150  Pit Stop 06/30/2022 345.00         

100-10-101-6120-160 Moses Amidei 06/29/2022 111.11         

100-10-101-6120-305  Darien Marion-Burton 07/06/2022 425.00         

100-10-101-6120-305  FOP Lodge #24 07/08/2022 525.00         

100-10-101-6120-305  Forest Pk. Chamber of Commerce 07/12/2022 60.00           

100-10-101-6120-305  West Central Municipal Conf 06/28/2022 690.00         

100-10-101-6150-112  North Central Council of Mayor 07/01/2022 1,314.00      

100-10-101-7000-150  Telcom Innovations Group LLC 06/24/2022 473.75         

100-11-111-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 210.00         

100-11-111-6100-120  Techno Consulting Inc 07/01/2022 3,500.00      

100-11-111-6110-110  Techno Consulting Inc 07/01/2022 700.00         

Public Affairs 10,353.86    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-12-121-6120-305  FOP Lodge #24 07/08/2022 150.00         

100-12-121-6145-306  Animal Care League 05/31/2022 250.00         

100-12-121-6150-114 Mount Prospect Police Dept IL Law Enforcement Admin Professionals 06/21/2022 299.00         

100-12-123-6145-202  DataCom Software 06/17/2022 449.00         

100-12-124-6150-114  Thomson Reuters-West 07/01/2022 405.56         

100-12-125-6110-150 Motorola Solutions StarCom21 Network 07/01/2022 110.00         

Police Department 1,663.56      



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-15-151-6140-140  Case Lots Inc 05/23/2022 91.80           

100-15-153-6170-202  Case Lots Inc 05/23/2022 169.70         

100-15-154-6170-102  Case Lots Inc 06/28/2022 287.95         

Community Center 549.45         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-21-211-5005-002  Fidelity Security Life Ins Co 06/29/2022 82.65           

100-21-211-5005-002  Fidelity Security Life Ins Co 06/29/2022 557.28         

100-21-211-6110-110  Xerox Financial Services 06/10/2022 149.97         

100-21-211-6110-110  Xerox Financial Services 06/10/2022 496.54         

100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 06/15/2022 15.70           

100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 06/15/2022 55.46           

100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 06/29/2022 57.05           

100-21-211-6140-110  Forest Printing Company 06/29/2022 776.75         

100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 06/15/2022 45.26           

100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 06/29/2022 126.20         

100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 06/30/2022 59.66           

100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 07/06/2022 32.99           

100-21-211-6150-116  Growing Community Media NFP 07/06/2022 50.00           

100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 07/01/2022 603.14         

100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 07/04/2022 83.52           

100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 07/07/2022 1,344.67      

100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T LONG DISTANCE 07/04/2022 9.82             

100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 07/01/2022 609.00         

100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 07/01/2022 3,400.47      

100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 07/01/2022 5,000.00      

100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 07/01/2022 2,554.50      

100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 07/01/2022 5,535.53      

100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 07/01/2022 3,381.51      

100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 07/01/2022 467.50         

100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 07/01/2022 4,658.97      

100-21-211-6160-001  Mesirow Insurance Services 07/12/2022 100.00         

100-21-211-6190-003  POLICE PENSION FUND 07/10/2022 5,714.29      

100-21-211-6190-004  Firefighters Pension Fund 07/10/2022 5,714.29      

100-21-211-7000-080  Xerox Financial Services 06/10/2022 122.50         

100-21-211-7000-080  Xerox Financial Services 06/10/2022 1,684.21      

100-22-221-6320-310 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 1,127.00      

Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 44,616.43    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-30-301-6100-170  IL Dept of Healthcare and Family Services - GEMT 07/17/2022 252,582.32  

100-30-301-6150-114  Illinois Fire Chiefs Assoc 12/16/2021 450.00         

100-30-302-6110-200  Municipal Emergency Services Inc 06/27/2022 687.50         

100-30-302-6145-100  Witmer Public Safety Group 07/01/2022 459.85         

100-30-303-6145-300  Linde Gas North America LLC 06/21/2022 169.62         

100-30-303-6145-300  Mckesson Medical 07/07/2022 299.21         

Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 254,648.50  



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-40-401-5000-017 Raymond Traynor 07/11/2022 630.00         

100-40-401-5000-017 Tariq Dandan 06/30/2022 680.00         

100-40-402-6100-115  Muse Community + Design 06/30/2022 2,317.50      

100-40-402-6141-003 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 105.00         

100-40-402-6141-003 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 262.50         

100-40-402-6150-232  B&F Construction Code Service 06/30/2022 635.00         

100-40-402-6150-232 Tariq Dandan 06/30/2022 450.00         

100-40-403-6140-206  Smithereen Pest Mgmt Services 07/01/2022 1,200.00      

100-40-403-6140-206 Carl Wilke 07/04/2022 300.00         

100-40-403-6150-230  Elevator Inspection Services 07/07/2022 100.00         

100-40-410-6140-100  The Sidwell Company 06/15/2022 100.00         

Department of Health & Safety 6,780.00      



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-50-502-6180-160  Com Ed 06/21/2022 3,772.30      

100-50-502-6185-108  JC Licht LLC 07/11/2022 185.80         

100-50-502-6185-108  JC Licht LLC 07/13/2022 381.08         

100-50-502-6185-505  West Cook County Solid Waste 06/30/2022 18,176.52    

100-50-502-6185-505  West Cook County Solid Waste 06/30/2022 88.59           

100-50-502-6185-505  West Cook County Solid Waste 06/30/2022 934.19         

Street Department 23,538.48    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-551-6150-126 Jessica Voogd 07/11/2022 290.00         

100-55-552-6180-101  First Ayd Corp. 06/28/2022 301.51         

100-55-552-6180-101  RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT 07/08/2022 252.97         

100-55-552-6180-114  First Ayd Corp. 06/23/2022 790.67         

100-55-552-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 06/30/2022 216.00         

100-55-552-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 07/08/2022 368.00         

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 05/17/2022 3,896.00      

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 06/16/2022 3,663.15      

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 06/16/2022 560.00         

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 06/16/2022 1,785.00      

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 06/26/2022 683.36         

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 06/30/2022 171.75         

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 06/30/2022 1,348.90      

100-55-553-6180-152  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 06/30/2022 595.00         

100-55-553-6180-152  State Treasurer-IDOT 07/05/2022 3,987.90      

100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 06/15/2022 187.07         

100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 06/22/2022 147.95         

100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 06/29/2022 10.20           

100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 06/29/2022 257.45         

100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 07/06/2022 50.99           

100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 07/02/2022 50.48           

100-55-555-6180-120  West Town Mechanical 06/28/2022 1,524.21      

100-55-555-6180-130  Case Lots Inc 05/23/2022 222.05         

100-55-555-6180-130  Case Lots Inc 06/28/2022 525.90         

100-55-555-6180-130  Comcast 07/01/2022 382.91         

100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 06/22/2022 182.61         

100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 06/28/2022 2.10             

100-55-555-6180-140  ULINE 06/28/2022 790.00         

100-55-570-6155-101  Mohr Oil Company 07/06/2022 18,705.31    

100-55-570-6155-102  Superior Petroleum Marketers 06/30/2022 648.50         

100-55-570-6155-106  Atlas Bobcat LLC 07/06/2022 142.20         

100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 06/06/2022 12.22           

100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 06/07/2022 68.87           

100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 06/07/2022 130.61         

100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 06/09/2022 176.25         

100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 06/22/2022 71.15           

100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 06/27/2022 15.34           

100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 06/29/2022 20.56           

100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 06/29/2022 75.77           

100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 06/06/2022 (16.00)          

100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 06/22/2022 57.38           

100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 07/06/2022 68.71           

100-55-570-6155-106  Wholesale Direct Inc. 06/29/2022 192.48         

100-55-570-6155-106  Wholesale Direct Inc. 07/06/2022 473.85         

100-55-570-6155-112  Berwyn Garage 06/24/2022 723.30         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 06/30/2022 649.43         

100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 06/30/2022 507.74         

100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 07/08/2022 712.20         

100-55-570-6155-112  Fleet Safety Supply 06/28/2022 375.37         

100-55-570-6155-112  Guzz Design 07/05/2022 280.00         

100-55-570-6155-202  Berwyn Garage 06/02/2022 1,522.68      

100-55-570-6155-202  Berwyn Garage 06/06/2022 59.74           

100-55-570-6155-202  Berwyn Garage 06/21/2022 432.80         

100-55-570-6155-202  Berwyn Garage 06/21/2022 1,572.37      

100-55-580-6180-210  JKS VENTURES INC 06/13/2022 80.00           

100-55-580-6180-302  Davis Tree Care 07/06/2022 700.00         

Public Property 51,702.96    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

230-00-000-6900-230  J.G. Uniforms 06/30/2022 880.00         

230-00-000-6900-230  Secretary of State 07/25/2022 302.00         

Seizure 1,182.00      



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

232-00-000-6900-232  Chicago Police Department 06/29/2022 2,386.00      

232-00-000-6900-232  Comcast 06/22/2022 181.04         

232-00-000-6900-232  Griffon Systems Inc 06/15/2022 12,937.50    

232-00-000-6900-232  Motorola Solutions Inc 07/07/2022 423.80         

232-00-000-6900-232  PowerDMS Inc 07/05/2022 7,375.95      

232-00-000-6900-232 Benito Marti 07/12/2022 301.50         

232-00-000-6900-232 Brendon Reilly 07/12/2022 301.50         

Federal Customs 23,907.29    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

235-00-000-7000-001  Fleet Safety Supply 07/01/2022 13,358.45    

Police Vehicle Replacement 13,358.45    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

302-00-000-6185-700  Griffon Systems Inc 06/15/2022 24,741.25    

302-00-000-6185-700 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 3,328.00      

304-00-000-6100-115 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 945.00         

304-00-000-6185-700  Griffon Systems Inc 06/15/2022 34,470.00    

304-00-000-6185-700 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2023 210.00         

TIF 63,694.25    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

312-00-000-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 937.50         

312-00-000-7000-102 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 2,824.33      

312-00-000-7000-108 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 1,162.50      

312-00-000-7000-120 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 6,357.50      

312-00-000-7000-135 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 140.00         

312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 07/06/2022 160.00         

312-00-000-7000-312 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 775.00         

312-00-000-7000-312 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 10,302.57    

VIP 22,659.40    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

501-00-000-1200-050 Margaret Malone 06/29/2022 130.21         

501-00-000-2500-001  Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 07/17/2022 184,732.73  

501-80-800-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 3,625.00      

501-80-800-6110-105  Springbrook Holding Company LLC 07/05/2022 587.00         

501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 06/29/2022 44.75           

501-80-800-6310-001  Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 07/17/2022 4,974.65      

501-80-800-6800-100  City of Chicago 07/08/2022 159,605.61  

501-80-800-6800-150  Centurion Plumbing Company 07/05/2022 14,830.60    

501-80-800-6800-150  Illinois EPA 06/24/2022 5,000.00      

501-80-800-6800-150  Illinois EPA 06/24/2022 1,000.00      

501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 06/30/2022 10,218.69    

501-80-800-6800-152  Centurion Plumbing Company 06/30/2022 10,296.89    

501-80-800-7000-020 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 630.00         

501-80-800-7000-020 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 665.00         

501-80-800-7000-020 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 830.00         

501-80-800-7000-020 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 06/30/2022 665.00         

Water Department 397,836.13  



TO:  Mayor Hoskins and Commissioners 
  Village Administrator Amidei 
 
FROM: Letitia Olmsted, Finance Director 
 
DATE:  July 20, 2022 
 
RE:  FY2023 Appropriation Ordinance for the July 25, 2022 agenda 
 
Per Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-2-9), the corporate authorities of municipalities with a 
population of less than 500,000 shall pass the annual appropriation ordinance within the first 
quarter of the fiscal year. The annual appropriation ordinance and estimate of revenues must be 
filed with the county clerk within 30 days of the adoption.  
 
The FY2023 Appropriation Ordinance is attached for your review. The Appropriation Ordinance 
establishes the legal spending limits, however the annual line-item budget is the working document 
for all financial activities. General and Water fund salaries are appropriated with a 5% to 7% 
allowance for overages due to expired contracts, overtime, and retirements; operating expenditures 
are categorized with allowances ranging from 10% to 30% for maintenance, repairs, and contract 
services, and a 30% to 50% allowance is provided for grants and capital expenses. The estimate of 
revenues mirrors the appropriations by fund and reflects a balanced operation. 
 
Below is a brief overview of changes from the FY2022 document. Current year operations reflect 
full staffing and resumption of suspended programs and operations. Large variances from prior 
year are for capital assets, grant programs, and infrastructure projects.  
 
   FY2023  FY2022  +/ - 
 
Public Affairs:  1,709,921  1,572,453  137,468 
- Police and Fire testing, consulting services, consolidated dispatch, website maintenance, 

community events 
 

Police Department: 5,859,737  5,957,148  (97,411) 
- Retirements recognized in FY2022; training and equipment expenses reallocated to Federal 

Customs and Police Seizure funds 
 
Community Center: 673,800  700,382  (26,582) 
- One full-time position eliminated 

 
Accounts / Finance: 14,547,441  12,660,834  1,886,607 
- Police and Fire pension contributions appropriated at 100% funding; higher allowance for 

insurance premiums; increase for federal grant programs 
 
Fire Department: 4,110,120  3,601,309  508,811 
- Proposal for additional firefighter staffing; recognition of cost share in Ground Emergency 

Medical Transportation (GEMT) program 
 

Health & Safety: 518,634  459,513  59,121 
- Consultant fees for zoning code and plan review 



 
Streets:  1,970,060  1,823,516  146,544 
- Allocation of current full-time chauffeur wages restructured in Street and Public 

Improvement and Public Property; training; contract services for refuse hauling  
 
Public Property: 2,277,914  2,501,928  (224,014) 
- Allocation of current full-time chauffeur wages restructured in Street and Public 

Improvement and Public Property 
 

General Fund: 31,667,626  29,277,082  2,390,544 
 
Police Seizure: 211,950  358,970  (147,020) 
- FY2022 budget included vehicle 
 
DUI Enforcement:   24,000  35,500   (11,500) 
- FY2023 budget for equipment only 

 
US Customs:  490,250  455,830  34,420 
- Department of Justice / Department of Treasury eligible expenses for training and equipment 

 
Police Vehicle:  190,000             76,550   113,450 
- Replacement police fleet vehicles 

 
IMRF:   350,000  350,000  0 
 
Social Security 385,000  385,000  0 

 
Mall TIF:  0   120,500  (120,500) 
- TIF terminated in FY2018; final expense paid in FY2022 

 
Brown Street TIF: 3,832,440  3,644,410  188,030 
- Additional funds appropriated for infrastructure projects 

 
Roosevelt/Hannah TIF: 1,530,500 1,822,835  (292,335) 
- Reduction in budgeted infrastructure projects  

 
Roosevelt Road TIF: 730,500  759,000  (28,500) 
- Reduction in budgeted infrastructure projects  

 
Motor Fuel Tax: 1,831,682  1,789,360  42,322 
- Additional funds appropriated for infrastructure projects and grant matching 

 
Series 2012 / VIP: 4,079,173  3,730,000  349,173 
- Additional funds appropriated for infrastructure projects and grant matching 
 
Fleet Replacement: 448,432  381,745             66,687 
- Replacement fleet and equipment 

 
Special Revenues: 14,103,926  13,909,699  194,227 



Series 2012 Debt: 715,000  713,450  1,550  
- Per debt schedule through 12/2025 

 
Enterprise / Water: 7,911,587  8,532,132  (620,545) 
- Reduction in budgeted infrastructure projects for FY2023 

 
Library Fund:  2,226,467  2,143,290  83,177 
- Salaries and building maintenance 

 
TOTALS:  56,627,607  54,575,654  2,048,953 



Be it ordained by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows:

Appropriation

OFFICE OF PUBLIC AFFAIRS
General Public Affairs
Salary for the Honorable Mayor 30,000$                    
Salary for the Liquor Commissioner 10,000$                    
Salary for Village Prosecutor 38,000$                    
Salaries for Support Staff 200,131$                  
Commissions 50,330$                    
Codification of Village Code 7,100$                      
Legal Services/Labor Negotiations 270,670$                  
Consolidated Dispatch Service 735,361$                  
Consulting Services 84,332$                    
IT Village-Wide 143,125$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 128,222$                  
Business Agreements 12,650$                    

     Total General Public Affairs 1,709,921$               

Police Department
Management and Office Salaries 1,597,162$               
Law Enforcement Expenses 209,310$                  
Officer Salaries 4,053,264$               

     Total Police Department 5,859,737$               

Community Center
Salaries 423,312$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 14,145$                    
Day Care Costs 24,125$                    
Events/Senior Services 133,100$                  
RTA Salaries 77,868$                    
RTA Office/Equipment Expense 1,250$                      

     Total Community Center 673,800$                  

TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF PUBLIC AFFAIRS 8,243,456$               

ORDINANCE NO. O-  -22

Section II. The following amounts of money, or as much thereof as hereby may be authorized by law, be and 
the same are hereby appropriated for the several municipal objects and purposes hereinafter specified, and 
to pay all necessary expenses and liabilities of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, for the fiscal 
year beginning May 1, 2022 and ending April 30, 2023, to wit:

GENERAL FUND

THE APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING

MAY 1, 2022 AND ENDING APRIL 30, 2023

Section I. This Ordinance is hereby termed "The Appropriation Ordinance of the Village of Forest Park, Cook 
County, Illinois, for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2022 and ending April 30, 2023."



Appropriation

OFFICE OF ACCOUNTS AND FINANCE
Accounts and Finance
Commissioner of Accounts and Finance 10,000$                    
Salaries 260,353$                  
Village Clerk/HR Administrator 105,000$                  
Insurance Benefits 2,578,082$               
Audit/Consulting Services 21,960$                    
Office Equipment and Supplies 539,195$                  
Foreign Fire Insurance Tax 45,000$                    
Police Pension Cost 3,438,097$               
Fire Pension Cost 2,492,293$               
Federal Grants 3,218,928$               
State Grants 722,520$                  
Local Grants 40,500$                    
Liability Insurance 1,075,512$               

     Total Clerk's Office 14,547,441$             

Fire Department
Management and Office Salaries 627,188$                  
Firefighter Salaries 2,285,167$               
Firefighting Equipment/Expenses 181,476$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 16,733$                    
Paramedic Services 999,557$                  

     Total Fire Department 4,110,120$               

TOTAL FOR OFFICE OF ACCOUNTS AND FINANCE 18,657,561$             

OFFICE OF HEALTH AND SAFETY
Commissioner 10,000$                    
Salaries 270,334$                  
Plan Review/Inspections 218,500$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 19,800$                    

TOTAL OFFICE OF HEALTH AND SAFETY 518,634$                  

OFFICE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
Commissioner 10,000$                    
Salaries 375,079$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 6,900$                      
Streets Maintenance, Equipment and Supplies 1,578,081$               

TOTAL OFFICE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 1,970,060$               

OFFICE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY
Commissioner 10,000$                    
Salaries 548,772$                  
Community Relations/Office Expenses 21,520$                    
Property Maintenance 342,171$                  

     Total General Public Property 922,463$                  



Appropriation

Street and Traffic Lighting 405,797$                  

Fleet Maintenance 608,790$                  

Forestry
Salaries 212,490$                  
Other Forestry Expenses 117,873$                  

     Total Forestry 330,363$                  

Playgrounds and Recreation
Playground Maintenance/Improvement 7,500$                      
Dog Park 3,000$                      

     Total for Playgrounds and Recreation 10,500$                    

TOTAL OFFICE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY 2,277,914$               

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 31,667,626$             

OFFICE OF PUBLIC AFFAIRS
Police Seizure Fund 211,950$                  

DUI Enforcement Fund 24,000$                    

U.S. Customs 490,250$                  

Police Vehicle Fund 190,000$                  

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS OFFICE OF PUBLIC AFFAIRS 916,200$                  

OFFICE OF ACCOUNTS AND FINANCE
IMRF Fund 350,000$                  

Social Security Fund 385,000$                  

Brown Street Station TIF 3,832,440$               
Consulting/Legal Services 80,000$                    
Contract with Developer 100,000$                  
Infrastructure Improvement Projects 3,651,940$               
Bank Service Fees 500$                         

Roosevelt/Hannah TIF 1,530,500$               
Consulting/Legal Services 80,000$                    
Contract with Developer 50,000$                    
Infrastructure Improvement Projects 1,400,000$               
Bank Service Fees 500$                         

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS



Appropriation

Roosevelt Road Corridor TIF 730,500$                  
Consulting/Legal Services 80,000$                    
Contract with Developer 50,000$                    
Infrastructure Improvement Projects 600,000$                  
Bank Service Fees 500$                         

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS OFFICE OF ACCOUNTS AND FINANCE 6,828,440$               

OFFICE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
Motor Fuel Tax
Maintenance of Streets and Engineering 1,831,682$               

Series 2012 Bond Fund 4,079,173$               
Infrastructure Improvement Program 3,999,173$               
Consulting/Legal Services 80,000$                    

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS OFFICE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENTS 5,910,854$               

OFFICE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY  
Fleet Replacement Fund
Vehicle and Equipment 448,432$                  

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND OFFICE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY 448,432$                  

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 14,103,926$             

OFFICE OF ACCOUNTS AND FINANCE
Series 2012 Bond Fund 715,000$                  
Debt Service Bond Redemption 635,000$                  
Debt Service Interest Payments 79,500$                    
Debt Service Bank Fees 500$                         

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 715,000$                  

OFFICE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
Water Fund
Wages/Benefits 430,546$                  
Community Relations/Office expenses 222,027$                  
Utilities/Tools/Supplies 67,200$                    
IEPA Loan 379,416$                  
Water Purchase/Treatment 3,096,183$               
Administration Charges 900,000$                  
Sewer Cleaning and Repair/Water Main Repair 294,000$                  
Equipment and Capital Maintenance 1,235,681$               
Infrastructure Improvements 1,286,535$               
     Total Water Fund 7,911,587$               

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND 7,911,587$               

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

ENTERPRISE FUND



Appropriation

Corporate
Salaries 1,304,467$               
Office Expenses/Equipment 400,000$                  
Circulation Collection 270,000$                  
Special Tax Expenses
Building and Grounds Maintenance 83,000$                    
Unemployment Insurance 8,000$                      
Workmen's Compensation 5,000$                      
FICA 60,000$                    
Public Liability Insurance 22,000$                    
IMRF 65,000$                    
Audit 9,000$                      

TOTAL FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND 2,226,467$               

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 56,624,607$             

Section III. The appropriations herein for the payment of "Liabilities", "Contract Liabilities", or "Unpaid Bills," if 
any, shall not be construed as an approval of any such liabilities or unpaid bills, but shall be regarded only as 
an appropriation for the payment thereof, when and if they are found to be valid and legal obligations against 
the Village of Forest Park, and are appropriated, vouchered and audited. 

FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY

Section IV. Any and all monies heretofore appropriated and not expended, which now remain in the Treasury 
of the Village of Forest Park, are hereby appropriated under the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section V. The appropriations made herein for salaries and wages for positions shall be regarded as 
maximum appropriations as to the sum appropriated, and the number of positions specified, and the length of 
time for which the incumbent of each position is to be employed. No employee shall have the right to demand 
continuous employment and compensation by reason of the appropriations, if it becomes necessary to 
discharge him or her on account of lack of work, or lack of funds. In case of any vacancy in any office or 
position herein appropriated for, the Head of the Department in which the vacancy occurs shall not be 
required to fill such office or position if, in his or her own judgment and discretion, there is no necessity 
thereof.

Section VI. All unexpended balances of any item of any appropriations made by this Ordinance may be 
expended by making good any insufficiency in any item or other appropriation made by this Ordinance.

Section VII. All Ordinances, or parts of Ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith, shall be, and the same 
are hereby repealed.



Appropriation

 Passed by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this  
25th day of  July, 2022

APPROVED

                                            
Mayor

PASSED;   This 25th day of July, 2022
APPROVED;   This 25th day of July, 2022
PUBLISHED;   This 25th day of July, 2022
 
ATTEST

                                           
Village Clerk

Section IX. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and 
publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.

Section VIII. If any item, purpose, sentence or portion thereof of this Ordinance be for any reason held invalid 
or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance, and 
that any Ordinance or parts of any Ordinance in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.



Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, certifies that the 
estimated revenue by source of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, for the fiscal year beginning
May 1, 2022 and ending April 30, 2023, is as follows:

Sub-Total
GENERAL FUND:
Taxes: Property Taxes-Corporate 2,084,883           

Personal Property Replacement Taxes 413,874              
Sales Taxes 5,657,235           
Auto Rental Tax 49,500                
Utility Taxes 1,492,500           9,697,993              

Intergovernmental Revenue: State Income Tax 2,845,575           
Local Use Tax 672,141              
Foreign Fire Insurance Tax 47,500                
IDOT Maintenance Agreement 112,775              
Federal Grants 3,183,105           
State of Illinois Grants 1,118,306           7,979,402              
      

Licenses, Permits, and Fees: Liquor Licenses 113,438              
Vehicle Licenses 297,000              
Business Licenses 160,213              
Parking Permits 343,750              
Amusement Rental Tax 1,600                  
Building & Zoning Fees 642,460              
Other Licenses & Permits 45,850                1,604,310              

Franchise Fees-Cable 294,450              294,450                 

Fines: Traffic Tickets 981,250              
Code Violation Fines 81,000                
Reporting Fees 15,030                1,077,280              

Fees for Services: Ambulance Service 1,546,190           
Community Center Child Care 269,500              
RTA Subsidy & Rides 49,650                
Contract Police Services 118,750              
Parking Meters & Lots 441,813              
Garbage Fees 1,062,387           
Recycling/Yard Waste Fees 210,650              3,698,941              

Rental Income: Water Towers 182,969              
Real Estate Right of Way 46,125                
Community Center 1,250                  230,344                 

CERTIFICATE OF ESTIMATED REVENUE
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2023



Sub-Total
Other Revenue: Community Center Activities/Events 145,000              

PACE Advertising 6,000                  
Local Grants                          90,000                
Insurance Proceeds 15,000                
Sales of Assets 2,500                  
Miscellaneous Revenues 8,475                  
Interest & Dividends 5,648                  272,623                 

General Fund Sub-Total 24,855,342            

SEPARATE GENERAL FUND TAX LEVIES:
Fire Protection Property Taxes 750,000              
Police Protection Property Taxes 750,000              1,500,000              

Forestry Property Taxes 105,000                 

Insurance Property Taxes 450,000                 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS:
Police Pension:

Property Tax Levy 2,585,289           
Personal Property Replacement Tax 42,266                2,627,555              

Fire Pension:

Property Tax Levy 2,093,510           
Personal Property Replacement Tax 46,028                2,139,538              

TOTAL SEPARATE LEVIES AND PPRT 6,822,093              

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 31,677,435            

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund:

Real Estate Taxes 325,000              

Replacement Taxes 27,186                352,187                 

Social Security Fund:

Real Estate Taxes 379,500              

Replacement Taxes 21,312                400,812                 

Motor Fuel Tax:

Motor Fuel Tax Allotments 679,382              
State of IL Bond Funds 155,610              
Reserve Funds 1,275,000           

Interest 3,000                  2,112,992              



Sub-Total
State Seizure Fund:

Seizure Sharing Funds 165,000              
Sales of Seized Vehicles 10,000                
Reserve Funds 170,000              

Interest 500                     345,500                 

DUI Enforcement Fund

Local share fines 4,000                  
Reserve Funds 35,500                

Interest 50                       39,550                   

US Customs Fund:

Federal Sharing Funds 406,800              
Reserve Funds 100,000              

Interest 40                       506,840                 

Brown St. Station TIF:

Property Taxes - TIF Increment 788,555              
Reserve for Capital Improvements 3,050,000           

Interest 10,000                3,848,555              

Roosevelt/Hannah TIF:

Property Taxes - TIF Increment 990,325              
Reserve for Capital Improvements 1,000,000           

Interest 10,000                2,000,325              

Roosevelt Road Corridor TIF:

Property Taxes - TIF Increment 513,150              
Reserve for Capital Improvements 300,000              

Interest 6,750                  819,900                 

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 10,426,661            

VIP CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND:
Non-Home Rule Sales Tax 3,036,769           
Reserve for Capital Improvements 1,850,000           

Interest 1,500                  4,888,269              

CAPITAL ASSET FUNDS:
Police Vehicle Fund

Local share fines 66,000                
Reserve Funds 125,000              

Interest 100                     191,100                 

Fleet Replacement Fund
Municipal Motor Fuel Tax 195,000              
Reserve Funds 115,000              

Interest 150                     501,250                 

TOTAL CAPITAL FUNDS 5,580,619              



Sub-Total

ENTERPRISE FUND:
Water Fund:

Water Billings 7,628,525           
Penalties 300,000              
Miscellaneous Charges/Fees 148,000              

Interest 11,441                8,087,966              

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND 8,087,966              

FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY: Public Library:

Real Estate Taxes 1,900,299           
Replacement Taxes 40,000                
Special Tax Revenues 231,168              
Grants 25,000                
Desk Income 20,000                
Interest 10,000                2,226,467              

TOTAL FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND 2,226,467              

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUE 57,999,148$          

Dated:  ___________________________
Vanessa Moritz
Village Clerk

Letitia Olmsted
Finance Director

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me,
a Notary Public, in Cook County, Illinois,
this               Day of ____________, 2022

_________________________________
Notary Public



1076839_1 

ORDINANCE NO. O-__________-22 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE WAIVING BID AND AUTHORIZING THE  
ACCEPTANCE OF A PROPOSAL FOR INSTALLATION OF ALARM  
EQUIPMENT AND MONITORING SERVICES BY AND BETWEEN  

ILLINOIS ALARM SERVICE, INC. AND THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK  
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1-8A-7 of the Village Code of the Village of Forest Park, 

the corporate authorities of the Village of Forest Park (the “Village”) may, by four-fifths vote of 

all Council members then holding office, waive the competitive bidding requirements of Section 

1-8A-7 of the Village Code; and 

 WHEREAS, Illinois Alarm Service, Inc. (“IAS”) has provided and currently provides 

alarm equipment and monitoring services to the Village and proposes to provide additional alarm 

equipment and monitoring services to the Village (“Alarm Services”); and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village believe that, due to its experience, skill 

set and existing satisfactory relationship with the Village, IAS is uniquely qualified to provide 

such additional cost effective Alarm Services to the Village; and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village find it advisable, necessary and in the 

best interest of the public to waive the requirement of Section 1-8A-7 of the Village Code to waive 

the competitive bidding requirements, and to accept the proposal from IAS regarding the Alarm 

Services, for the installation amount of One Thousand Four Hundred Seventy-Five and 00/100 

Dollars ($1,475.00) and the monthly maintenance cost of Two Hundred Seventy-Four Dollars 

($274.00).  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 



1076839_1 

 Section 1. The foregoing recital clauses to this Ordinance are adopted by the corporate 

authorities as their findings of fact and are incorporated herein by specific reference. 

 Section 2. The corporate authorities of the Village hereby waive the requirement of 

Section 1-8A-7 of the Village Code, and hereby accept the Security Systems and Services 

Agreement from IAS, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Agreement”), subject 

to execution by IAS and receipt by the Village of the certifications attached hereto as Exhibit B 

and made a part hereof.. 

 Section 3.  The Village Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to execute the 

Agreement on behalf of the Village. 

Section 4. The officials, officers and employees of the Village are hereby authorized 

to take such further actions and execute such documents as are necessary to carry out the purpose 

and intent of this Resolution and the Proposal. 

 Section 5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption. 

 ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, this 25th 

day of July, 2022. 

AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 

APPROVED:   
 
 

 _____________________________________ 
      Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



1076839_1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Illinois Alarm Service, Inc. 
Security System and Service Agreement 

 
 
 
 

  



1076839_1 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Certifications 
 

  



1076839_1 

ILLINOIS ALARM SERVICES, INC.  
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
The assurances hereinafter made by ILLINOIS ALARM SERVICES, INC. (hereinafter the 

“Contractor”) are each a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed by the Village 
of Forest Park in entering into the contract with the Contractor.  The Village of Forest Park may 
terminate the contract if it is later determined that the Contractor rendered a false or erroneous 
assurance. 

 
I, _________________________, hereby certify that I am the ____________________ of 
          (Name of Owner or Officer)      (Title or Office)  

ILLINOIS ALARM SERVICES, INC., and as such, hereby represent and warrant to the VILLAGE 
OF FOREST PARK, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter the “Village”) that the Contractor and 
its shareholders holding more than five percent (5%) of the outstanding shares of the corporation, 
its officers and directors are: 
 

(a) not delinquent in the payment of taxes to the Illinois Department of Revenue in 
accordance with 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1; 
 

(b) not barred from contracting as a result of a violation of either Section 33E-3 (bid 
rigging) or 33E-4 (bid-rotating) of the Criminal Code of 1961 (720 ILCS 5/33E-
3 and 5/33E-4); 

 
(c) not in default, as defined in 5 ILCS 385/2, on an educational loan, as defined in 

5 ILCS 385/1. 
 

  In addition, the Contractor hereby represents and warrants to the Village, that:  
 

(A) the Contractor, pursuant to 30 ILCS 580/1 et seq. (“Drug-Free Workplace Act”), 
will provide a drug-free workplace by: 

 
   (1) Publishing a statement: 
 
   a.   Notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance including 
cannabis, is prohibited in the Contractor's workplace; 

 
 b. Specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for 

violations of such prohibition; 
 
 c. Notifying the employee that, as a condition of employment on such 

Contract, the employee will; 
 i.   Abide by the terms of the statement; 
 ii.   Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction 

for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five 
(5) days after such conviction; 

 



1076839_1 

(2) Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about: 
 

    a. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
b. the Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
c. any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee 

assistance program; and 
    d.  the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug 

violations; 
 

(3) Making it a requirement to give a copy of the statement required by 
Subsection (A)(1) to each employee engaged in the performance of the 
Contract, and to post the statement in a prominent place in the workplace; 

 
(4) Notifying the Village within ten (10) days after receiving notice under 

paragraph(A)(1)e from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of 
such conviction; 

 
(5) Imposing a sanction on, or requiring the satisfactory participation in a drug 

abuse assistance or rehabilitation program by any employee who is so 
convicted, as required by 30 ILCS 580/5; 

 
(6) Assisting employees in selecting a course of action in the event drug 

counseling treatment and rehabilitation is required and indicating that a 
trained referral team is in place; 

 
(7) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace 

through implementation of this section;  
 

(B) the Contractor has not excluded and will not exclude from participation in, denied 
the benefits of, subjected to discrimination under, or denied employment to any 
person in connection with any activity funded under the contract on the basis of 
race, color, age, religion, national origin, disability, or sex; 

 
(C) no Village officer, spouse or dependent child of a Village officer, agent on behalf 

of any Village officer or trust in which a Village officer, the spouse or dependent 
child of a Village officer or a beneficiary is a holder of any interest in the 
Contractor; or, if the Contractor’s stock is traded on a nationally recognized 
securities market, that no Village officer, spouse or dependent child of a Village 
officer, agent on behalf of any Village officer or trust in which a Village officer, 
the spouse or dependent child of a Village officer or a beneficiary is a holder of 
more than one percent (1%) of the Contractor, but if any Village officer, spouse or 
dependent child of a Village officer, agent on behalf of any Village officer or trust 
in which a Village officer, the spouse or dependent child of a Village officer or a 
beneficiary is a holder of less than one percent (1%) of such Contractor, the 
Contractor has disclosed to the Village in writing the name(s) of the holder of such 
interest; 



1076839_1 

 
(D) no officer or employee of the Village has solicited any gratuity, discount, 

entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other tangible or intangible item 
having monetary value including, but not limited to, cash, food and drink, and 
honoraria for speaking engagements related to or attributable to the government 
employment or the official position of the employee or officer from the Contractor 
in violation of Chapter 2-8A-3 of the Municipal Code of the Village of Forest Park;  

 
(E) the Contractor has not given to any officer or employee of the Village any gratuity, 

discount, entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other tangible or 
intangible item having monetary value including, but not limited to, cash, food and 
drink, and honoraria for speaking engagements related to or attributable to the 
government employment or the official position of the employee or officer in 
violation of Chapter 2-8A-3 of the Municipal Code of the Village of Forest Park; 

 
(F) neither it nor any of its principals, shareholders, members, partners, or affiliates, as 

applicable, is a person or entity named as a Specially Designated National and 
Blocked Person (as defined in Presidential Executive Order 13224) and that it is 
not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of a Specially Designated National 
and Blocked Person and that the Contractor and its principals, shareholders, 
members, partners, or affiliates, as applicable, are not, directly or indirectly, 
engaged in, and are not facilitating, the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement on behalf of any person or entity named as a Specially Designated 
National and Blocked Person;  

 
(G) the Contractor acknowledges that, pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois 

Freedom of Information Act, (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.), documents or records prepared 
or used in relation to work performed under this agreement are considered a public 
record of the Village; and therefore, within thirty (30) days of completion of the 
work required of the Contractor under this agreement, the Contractor shall produce 
to the Village, in electronic format, all records that directly relate to the 
governmental function performed by the Contractor under this agreement at no 
additional cost to the Village; and furthermore, the Contractor shall review its 
records and promptly produce to the Village any additional records in the 
Contractor’s possession which the Village requires in order to properly respond to 
a request made pursuant to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1 
et seq.), and the Contractor shall produce to the Village such records within three 
(3) business days of a request for such records from the Village at no additional 
cost to the Village. 

 
(H) the Contractor shall comply with any and all provisions of the Illinois Prevailing 

Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130 et seq. 
 
  



1076839_1 

  If any certification made by the Contractor or term or condition in this contract changes, 
the Contractor shall notify the Village in writing within seven (7) days. 

 
Dated: ____________, 2022          Contractor: ILLINOIS ALARM SERVICES, INC. 
 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
       ____________________ , ______________ 

(Name of Owner or Officer          (Title or Office)  
 
 STATE OF _____________  ) 

) ss. 
 COUNTY OF ___________ ) 
 

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for the State and County aforesaid, hereby 
certify that ___________________________ known to me to be the _____________________ 

 (Name of Owner or Officer)     (Title or Office)  
of ILLINOIS ALARM SERVICES, INC., appeared before me this day in person and,  
being first duly sworn on oath, acknowledged that he executed the foregoing certification as his 
free act and deed. 
 
 Dated: ____________, 2022   
       ____________________________________ 

  Notary Public 
 

 



 

 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 
 

SECURITY SYSTEM AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
Alarm Company (“Alarm Co”):                     Subscriber (“Sub”):  
Illinois Alarm Service, Inc. 
7340 W. 15th Street · Forest Park, IL 60130 
708.366.2400   ·    IL License #127-000167 
illinoisalarm.com 

 
Alarm Co agrees to furnish Sub with installation as described and services as checked and provide any other Alarm Co services upon 
request at established rates. Radio transmitting equipment, CPU chip, software, data, passcode to the software and the transmitting and 
receiving equipment necessary for monitoring service remains the property of Alarm Co. Title and ownership of all other equipment, 
wiring and apparatus shall ☐ remain with Alarm Co, or ☐  transfer to Sub upon full payment of the purchase price. 

 

 MONITOR: ☐  BURGLAR ALARM        ☐  FIRE ALARM        ☐  HOLDUP        ☐  CARD ACCESS         ☐  CCTV        ☐  ELEVATOR RECALL                                 

☐  ELEVATOR  PHONE      ☐  TEMPERATURE        ☐  SPRINKLER        ☐  OTHER___________________________________________________ 

☐  AT CENTRAL MONITORING STATION UL (“CS”)      ☐  ALARM.COM       ☐  OTHER CS ____________________________________________ 

 SIGNALING FROM SUB TO CS IS:  ☐  DIGITAL  ☐  INTERNET  ☐  RADIO  ☐  CELLULAR  ☐  OTHER ___________________________ 

☐  OPENING/CLOSING CONTROL OF SYSTEM     ☐  OPENING/CLOSING, LOG ONLY   ☐  SUB ACCESS TO ACTIVITY REPORTS  

PARTS AND LABOR REPAIR SERVICE:  ☐  BURGLAR  ☐  FIRE  ☐  CCTV  ☐  CARD ACCESS  ☐  OTHER _______________________________ 

BILLABLE T & M REPAIR SERVICE ON REQUEST: ☐  BURGLAR  ☐  FIRE  ☐  CCTV  ☐  CARD ACCESS  ☐  OTHER _______________________ 

                    INSPECTION & TESTING:   ☐  MONTHLY       ☐  BI-MONTHLY       ☐  QUARTERLY       ☐  SEMI-ANNUAL       ☐  ANNUAL    

☐  UL CERTIFICATION          ☐  CLOUD / HOSTED SERVICES       ☐  MANAGED SERVICES      ☐  INSTALL ONLY 

Sub shall pay Alarm Co the sum of ($____________________) Dollars, of which ½ is to be paid upon signing of this Agreement or when 
billed to Sub shortly thereafter, and the unpaid amount is to be paid upon substantial completion of installation, and shall pay, in addition, 
for ongoing services the sum of ($____________________) Dollars per month, payable quarterly in advance.  A late payment charge of 
1 ½% per month may be added to all amounts that remain unpaid for more than thirty (30) days, which is an Annual Percentage Rate of 
19.56%.  Monthly charges may be prorated to coincide with standard periods. 

System Description 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS ON FOLLOWING PAGES 
 

  

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C843E38D-5498-4B7F-A7C1-C55281345889

X

FIRE

INSTALL: AT THE ATTACHED SCHEDULE LOCATIONS
ONE (1) IAS LIFE SAFETY RADIO
ONE (1) UL LISTED ENCLOSURE
ONE (1) PLUG IN TRANSFORMER 

PROVIDE ANNUAL FIRE ALARM  TEST AND DOCUMENTATION SERVICES AT EACH SCHEDULE LOCATION

*PREVAILING WAGE LABOR INCLUDED FOR INSTALLATION OF LIFE SAFETY RADIOS

THE ATTACHED SCHEDULE OF LOCATIONS IS ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT "A"

THE ATTACHED SCHEDULE EXHIBIT "A" MAY FROM TIME TO TIME BE AMENDED TO REFLECT ADDITIONS OR 
DELETIONS TO THE LOCATIONS BEING SERVED BY THIS AGREEMENT. SUCH ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS SHALL BE 
COMMUNICATED IN WRITING BY SUBSCRIBER TO ALARM COMPANY

**UPDATED TERMS** THIS AGREEMENT SHALL REMAIN IN EFFECT TILL MAY 1, 2023 AT SAID TIME, PER 
SUBSCRIBERS APPROVAL THIS AGREEMENT SHALL RENEW FOR A TERM OF FOUR (4) YEARS. 
ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT AND ATTACHED AMENDMENT SHALL REMAIN UNCHANGED 
AND IN FULL FORCE

EXCLUSION(S):
ANY AND ALL MUNICIPAL FEE(S)
ANY ON-LINE SUBMITTAL FEE(S)
ELECTRICAL OUTLET(S)

X

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK
517 DES PLAINES AVENUE
FOREST PARK, IL 60130

X

1475.00

X

274.00

X

X



 

 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. Alarm Co assumes no liability for interruption of service or installation due to labor disputes, floods, riots, fires, interruptions in 
communication services, acts of God, war, global pandemic, supply chain shortages, equipment failure, electrical failure, or any causes 
beyond the control of Alarm Co, and Alarm Co is not required to supply service to Sub while such interruptions exist.  Sub has the 
affirmative duty to inform Alarm Co, prior to beginning of installation, of every location at the premises where Alarm Co should not 
(because of concealed obstructions or hazards such as pipes, wires, or asbestos) enter or drill holes.  Unless so notified, Alarm Co will 
determine where to drill holes and place equipment.  Alarm Co will take reasonable precautions to avoid concealed obstructions but has 
no means of determining with certainty if they exist.  If asbestos or other health hazardous material is encountered during installation, 
Alarm Co will cease work until Sub has, at Sub’s sole expense, obtained clearance from a licensed asbestos removal or hazardous 
material contractor that continuation of work will not pose danger to personnel.  Costs incurred to repair pipes, wire, or other obstructions, 
and any resulting damaged walls, ceilings, floors or furnishings shall be Sub’s sole expense and responsibility.  In no case shall Alarm 
Co be liable for discovery or exposure of hidden asbestos or other hazardous material. Sub represents that the owner of the premise, if 
other that Sub, authorizes the installation of the equipment under the terms of this agreement. Subscriber assumes all risk of loss of 
material once delivered to job site. Sub agrees to pay for any increased cost of material or labor due to delay in installation outside the 
control of Alarm Co. Alarm Co will provide Sub written notice stating both the increased cost and source of the materials. 

2. Sub will provide access to premises to Alarm Co for installation of System or service.  Sub understands Alarm Co may use 
subcontractors to provide installation, repair, monitoring and other services and agrees that installation of System does not create a 
fixture to Sub’s premises.  In the event Sub is not the owner of premises, Sub warrants that they have obtained the written consent of 
owner for the installation and removal of System.  Alarm Co will have the right to install transmitting and receiving equipment in the 
telephone or mechanical equipment room and on the roof or top of Sub’s buildings or structures. Sub agrees to furnish necessary 
continuous 110 volt non-switched dedicated electrical circuits and outlets at Sub’s expense for Alarm Co equipment.  Sub will provide 
adequate lighting for any CCTV system and otherwise provide the proper environment for the System per manufacturer specifications 
or as Alarm Co may reasonably request.  Sub also agrees to allow surface wiring as needed and understands that any requirement for 
(A) plenum wire, (B) conduit, (C) a non-standard business hour schedule, (D) union workers, or (E) prevailing wage rates will be at an 
additional charge unless specified in Agreement.   

3. Alarm Co agrees, in accordance with repair services chosen by Sub as checked or as provided, to repair System during the term of 
Agreement. Alarm Co shall make any necessary repairs as soon after receipt of notice from Sub as is reasonably practical.  Sub agrees 
that while Alarm Co’s duty to service System is subject to the availability of the original part or equipment from original manufacturer, 
Alarm Co may elect to use new or refurbished substitute components or replacement parts of similar operational intent.  Required Service: 
Police agencies require repair of Systems which cause false dispatches. When Alarm Co takes over rendering services to Sub in whole 
or in part at the request of Sub, or as a result of the acquisition of Sub from another alarm company, Alarm Co shall have no duty to test 
signaling unless Alarm Co reprograms or installs new monitoring equipment.  Alarm Co will then test one signal of each type to be 
monitored (e.g., burglar, hold up, fire alarm, fire trouble, fire supervisory).  Unless specifically requested to do so in writing by Sub, Sub 
has no expectation and Alarm Co has no duty to (A) perform a partial or complete System test during any service visit, whether to 
reprogram control, repair a defect or at any other time, or (B) re-engineer System or verify its compliance to current code even when 
System of Sub, through the passing of time, changes in the code or otherwise, is not code compliant. Sub also acknowledges that defects 
or deficiencies noted on Alarm Co service or test reports not covered by Alarm Co repair service agreement will not be repaired unless 
specifically requested to do so by Sub in writing.  Sub agrees that all changes to System necessitated by a change in telephone service, 
including dialing pattern or area code changes, and all repair services to System caused by remodeling, code requirements, corrosive 
atmosphere, improper use of System, misuse, abuse, vandalism, lightning, or any other act of God are billable even when Sub has a 
repair service agreement in force.   

4. Sub understands that the System and transmitting equipment are not infallible and may fail to generate the intended signals and, 
irrespective of the communications equipment or service used, the communication of data from the System may be interrupted, cut off, 
circumvented or otherwise compromised.  During an outage, signals will not be received by the CS nor will CS have any reliable 
notification that such outage exists.   Internet, cellular or radio service used as a primary or secondary communications path are all 
subject to transmission interruptions. Cellular or radio signaling may be interrupted by atmospheric conditions or jamming and Internet 
service may be adversely affected by line cut, internet traffic, computer maintenance or other conditions beyond the control of Alarm Co 
which may prevent or delay alarm signal transmission to CS.  Sub further understands that all communication services are probabilistic 
by their nature, and acknowledges that multiple types of communications equipment and redundant services are available at additional 
cost to increase system reliability and the likelihood of signals being successfully communicated to CS.  It is Sub’s sole responsibility to 
(A) routinely test and confirm that the Sub’s communications equipment and services used to transmit data to CS remain functional with 
System, especially when there are any changes to such communications equipment or services; (B) immediately after the installation of 
DSL, Voice over Internet (VOIP) or other broadband service, test the System’s signal transmission with CS because such change may 
prevent the System from sending alarm signals to CS, and (C) test the System, including testing any motion detectors, any other 
electronic equipment, the communications equipment and service periodically, at least monthly, and Sub shall immediately report to 
Alarm Co any problem with System.  When standard telephone service is used for signaling to CS and the System is activated, Sub may 
be unable to use their telephone to make other calls (such as calls to the 911 emergency operators) during the transmission of alarm 
data and therefore Sub may wish to have System connected to a second telephone line. 

5. Sub acknowledges and agrees that both Sub and Alarm Co are required to comply with all laws, rules and regulations regarding 
monitoring and alarm response enacted or adopted by the AHJ.  The CS may modify or discontinue any particular response service due 
to governmental or insurance requirements by giving Sub notice.  If alarm signal is transmitted to an Other CS, policies and procedures 
are determined by that entity. Upon receipt of an alarm signal at Alarm Co CS from Sub’s premises, CS will first make calls to Sub or its 
representatives to attempt to verify whether or not an emergency condition exists.  If CS believes that an emergency condition may exist, 
CS will then make a reasonable effort to notify police, sheriff, fire department or other authority having jurisdiction (AHJ).  CS shall make 
a reasonable effort to notify Sub or its designated representative by telephone or other means unless runner service or private runner is 
provided, or CS has been instructed to do otherwise by Sub.  Should Sub’s representative fail to respond within thirty (30) minutes to an 
alarm with an outside ringer which is causing a disturbance, or an alarm which is constantly transmitting signals to the CS, Sub authorizes 
Alarm Co to use its discretion to gain entry to building with whatever method is required, including forcible entry, and remedy malfunction 
on behalf of Sub. Furthermore, Sub agrees to pay Alarm Co for such service at then current rates for such call.  If AHJ has a physical 
on-site verification requirement, upon receipt of alarm signal, CS will not notify the AHJ and shall only attempt to notify Sub’s designated 
representative or, if subscribed to by Sub, a private responder in accordance with written instructions from Sub. If private responder 
notifies CS that an emergency condition has been observed, CS will then notify the AHJ. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                Subscriber Initial: ____________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C843E38D-5498-4B7F-A7C1-C55281345889



 

 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 

6. If runner service is provided, CS will dispatch Alarm Co runner responder or runner subcontractor to the Sub premises when 
available.  Runner will meet and provide access to the Sub premises for the owner’s representative or responding police or fire 
authorities if Alarm Co has keys for the premises.  Runner is not providing an armed or unarmed guard or policing function and has no 
duty to attempt to apprehend unauthorized people. 
 
7. Sub hereby agrees that Alarm Co shall have the right to modify the charges at any time or times beginning six (6) months after the 
date of this Agreement by giving Sub written notice a minimum of sixty (60) days in advance of the effective date of such change.  If Sub 
is unwilling to pay such increase and notifies Alarm Co in writing by sending a letter by first class USPS mail to “Customer Service, 7340 
W. 15th Street, Forest Park, IL 60130” or by email to CustomerService@illinoisalarm.com at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective 
date of such increase, Alarm Co shall be permitted, at its sole option, upon written notice to Sub, to terminate this Agreement as if the 
term had expired or, in the alternative, to continue the prior rate and allow this Agreement to remain in full force and effect without further 
notice.  Failure to notify Alarm Co in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of increase will constitute Sub’s consent to 
the increase, and all other terms and conditions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

8. Sub authorizes Alarm Co to investigate its credit, employment, income history and references.  Upon Sub’s failure to pay any sums 
due Alarm Co under this Agreement, or upon termination of service by Sub or Alarm Co, Alarm Co may terminate its obligations under 
this Agreement and remove any Alarm Co owned radio equipment, wiring and apparatus from Sub’s premises or alternately abandon all 
or any portion of the System. If Sub does not permit Alarm Co to recover all Alarm Co owned radio, equipment, wire and apparatus, 
monthly charges will be continued solely as a rental fee for such equipment (with no other services to be provided by Alarm Co) until 
Alarm Co is allowed to recover its equipment. Alarm Co will have no obligation to repair or redecorate any portion of Sub’s premises due 
to the removal of Alarm Co’s System. At such time, all charges incurred under the terms of this Agreement, up to cancellation date, shall 
immediately become due and payable.  In addition, the parties agree that it would be very difficult, if not impossible, to ascertain actual 
damages for any breach of Agreement by Sub, and the parties agree that Sub shall immediately pay to Alarm Co, upon any breach, or 
upon premature cancellation of service by Sub, as and for liquidated damages, the sum of seventy-five percent (75%) of any charges 
remaining to be paid under the terms and life of this Agreement.  The parties further agree that Sub shall pay all court costs, collection 
fees and reasonable attorney’s fees of thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of all monies remaining to be paid under this 
Agreement, if Alarm Co places this Agreement in the hands of an attorney for collection.    

9. If Alarm Co incurs any new or increased charges for use of telephone or other communication lines or services, or if any new or 
increased taxes or license fees shall be incurred by Alarm Co which increase Alarm Co’s cost of performing this Agreement, the 
proportional share of such costs shall be payable by Sub in increased monthly charges.  Sub gives Alarm Co its consent to order an 
access connection on Sub’s line from a telephone or cable company to provide monitoring service.  Sub agrees to pay any false alarm 
fines or assessments, permits, taxes, submittals, on-line filing, fees, or other charges relating to the installation or services provided 
under this Agreement charged by any governmental body.   

10. Sub shall not permit any person or persons to attach any device, contrivance or apparatus to the lines, wires, or equipment of Alarm 
Co System, or to alter, remove or tamper with any software, data, access codes or System equipment, except the authorized agents of 
Alarm Co, without the written permission of Alarm Co.  Sub warrants and represents that Sub is not under any enforceable agreement 
with any other party for any service, repair, monitoring or other work that Alarm Co is providing under this Agreement.  

11. Sub consents and agree that Alarm Co. may collect (including Sub’s consent to record any and all telephone conversations with 
representatives) use, disclose and transfer any and all personal information, and that of third parties provided by Sub to our parents, 
affiliates, subsidiaries and our successor corporations, any sub-contractor or assignee of this Agreement or any authority having 
jurisdiction (AHJ) that request such information to administer alarm monitoring services or alarm system license, permit or similar 
programs. 
 

12. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY It is understood and agreed: That Alarm Co and its directors, officers, shareholders, agents, 
assigns, employees, or independent contractors, or manufactures providing portions of the equipment, installation or services 
for Sub (including, but not limited to, signal carriers, telephone companies, municipal agencies, monitoring providers), all 
hereinafter referred to as “Others,” are not an insurer; that insurance covering all loss, damage, and expense arising out of or 
from, in connection with, related to, as a consequence of or resulting from this Agreement, shall be obtained and continuously 
maintained by Sub; that payments provided for herein are based solely on the value of System and services as set forth herein 
and are unrelated to the value of Sub’s property or property of others located on Sub’s premises; that Alarm Co and Others 
make no guarantee, representation or warranty, including any implied warranty of merchantability or fitness that System or 
services supplied may not be compromised or circumvented, or that System or services will in all cases provide signaling, 
monitoring and response for which it was intended; that Sub is not relying on Alarm Co’s skill or judgment in selecting or 
furnishing a System or service suitable for any particular purpose. 

Sub understands and agrees that the liability of Alarm Co and Others for all loss, damage or expense which may occur prior 
to, contemporaneously with, or subsequent to execution of this Agreement due to improper installation, operation or non-
operation of System or services (including, without limitation or example, communications equipment or services necessary 
to transmit to or receive any data at the CS is expressly limited as set forth herein. In addition to the limitations of liability 
currently in force, Alarm Co and Others liability for all loss, damage, or expense due to data breach, access to or disclosure of 
any persons or organization’s confidential or personal information, including, but not limited to patents, trade secrets, 
processing methods, customer lists, financial information, credit card information, health information or any other type of 
nonpublic information; or the loss of, loss of use of, damage to, corruption of, inability to access, or inability to manipulate 
electronic data, is expressly limited as set for herein.  

Should there arise any liability on the part of Alarm Co or Others for any damages of any kind, including, without limitation, 
economic losses, personal injury, death, or property damage (real or personal) which is in connection with, arises out of or 
from, results from, is related to or is a consequence of the active or passive sole, joint or several negligence of any kind or 
degree (including gross negligence) of Alarm Co or Others including, without limitation, acts, errors or omissions which occur 
prior to, contemporaneously with or subsequent to execution of this Agreement, or breach of this Agreement, or any claim 
brought in product or strict liability, subrogation, contribution or indemnification, whether in contract, tort or equity, including, 
without limitation, any general, direct, special, incidental, exemplary, punitive, statutory or consequential damages, 
irrespective of cause, such liability shall be limited to the maximum sum of 10% of the annual service charge or $2,000.00, 
whichever is greater, collectively for Alarm Co and Others, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty as Sub’s exclusive 
remedy. 

In the event that Sub wishes Alarm Co or Others to assume greater liability, Sub may, as a matter of right, obtain from Alarm 
Co a higher limit by paying an additional amount proportionate to the increase in exposure assumed by the Alarm Co, but Sub 
expressly and explicitly acknowledges that such additional sum(s) paid, and obligation(s) undertaken shall in no event make 
Alarm Co or Others insurers.  This limitation of liability covers all Alarm Co supplied equipment and services, including 
monitoring, at all of Sub’s locations.  Sub acknowledges that additional premises protection and a higher level of security for 
alarm signal transmission to the CS is available at additional cost to Sub.   

  

                                                                                                                                                              Subscriber Initial: _____________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C843E38D-5498-4B7F-A7C1-C55281345889



Page 4 of 4 

13. INDEMNIFICATION  If anyone other than Sub asks Alarm Co or Others to pay for any harm or damages (including property
damage, personal injury or death) connected with or resulting from (i) a failure of the System or services, (ii) Alarm Co's or
Other’s own negligence, (iii) any other improper or careless activity of Alarm Co or Others in providing the System or services
or (iv) a claim for indemnification or contribution, Sub will repay, respectively, to Alarm Co or Others (a) any amount which a
court orders Alarm Co or Others to pay or which Alarm Co or Others reasonably agree to pay, and (b) the amount of Alarm Co's
or Other’s reasonable attorney's fees and any other losses and costs that Alarm Co or Others may pay in connection with the
harm or damages.  Sub's obligation to repay Alarm Co or Others for such harm or damages shall not apply if the harm or
damages happens while one of either Alarm Co's or Other’s employees or subcontractors are in or about the protected
premises, and such harm or damages is solely caused by that employee or subcontractor.  Sub hereby releases Alarm Co and
Others for losses, damages and expenses (i) covered by Sub’s insurance policies, (ii) policy deductibles, co-pay percentage,
or retained limits, (iii) in excess of amounts paid by Sub’s insurance, and (iv) due to underinsurance.  Under no circumstance,
shall Alarm Co Indemnify Sub.

14. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION Sub hereby waives all claims for recovery against Alarm Co or Others for any loss or damage
to any of Sub's property insured under valid or collectible insurance policies.  This waiver of subrogation rights shall extend
to all forms of subrogation, including but not limited to equitable and conventional subrogation, and shall be binding on any
and all assignees or subrogees of Sub's rights.  Sub agrees to shift the risk of loss to its insurers who have expressly contracted 
to accept the risk of loss as to Sub's property.  Sub expressly and explicitly acknowledges that its insurers have undertaken
said risk of loss as to its property and that those insurers have charged Sub a fee or premium commensurate with that
undertaking of risk of loss.  Sub will notify its insurance company of this release.

15. All verbal or written communication between the parties which occurred prior to the date of this Agreement are merged into terms of
this Agreement and the entire agreement of the parties is expressed hereinabove and no verbal understandings or agreement shall alter, 
change or modify the terms and provisions of this Agreement except that additional protection offered by Alarm Co to Sub remains
available subject to current pricing.  Sub is not relying on any advice or advertisement of Alarm Co.  In the event that any provision of
this Agreement is found to be unenforceable, all other terms shall remain in full force and effect.  It is understood and agreed that if there
is any conflict between this Agreement and Sub’s purchase order, or any other Sub document, this Agreement will govern whether such
purchase order or other document is executed prior or subsequent to this Agreement and that any work performed under any Sub
construction-type contract or purchase order is subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Alarm Co may assign this
Agreement without prior notice or consent of Sub; however, Sub may not assign this Agreement unless such assignment is consented
to in writing by Alarm Co.  Sub further agrees that this Agreement becomes effective only upon either (i) an officer of Alarm Co signing
a copy of this Agreement or (ii) Alarm Co commences the work to be performed under this Agreement.  Sub further acknowledges that
Sub may not receive a copy of Agreement signed by an officer of Alarm Co and that lack of such a receipt shall not, in any way, invalidate
or otherwise affect this Agreement.  This Agreement is deemed executed in Cook County, Illinois, shall be governed by Illinois law and
venue shall be exclusive in the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois should any dispute between Alarm Co and Sub be litigated.  The
parties hereby waive any objection they may have to jurisdiction or venue of any such suit, and further waive trial by jury in
any action between them.  No suit or action shall be brought against Alarm Co or Others more than one year after the accrual
of the cause of action. Sub also waives the right to initiate or participate in a class action litigation or arbitration against Alarm
Co. In any action commenced by Alarm Co against a non-residential Sub, Sub shall not be permitted to interpose any counterclaim.  The
interpretation of this Agreement shall not be construed against the drafter.  If Sub moves, Sub may move the alarm service to Sub’s new
location upon the payment of reasonable costs incurred in transferring the System to the new location.  All terms contained in this
Agreement will remain in full force and effect and Sub will continue to be liable for the remaining period under terms of this Agreement.

IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT IF ANY AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION REQUIRES ANY CHANGES AND/OR 
PERMIT FEES TO THE ABOVE SYSTEM, IT WILL BE AT ADDITIONAL EXPENSE TO THE SUB. 

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT FOR A PERIOD OF SEVEN (7) YEARS FROM THE DATE ON 
WHICH THE MONTHLY CHARGES OR TIME AND MATERIAL CHARGES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT BECOME EFFECTIVE, 
AND THEREAFTER SHALL AUTOMATICALLY RENEW FOR SUCCESSIVE TERMS EQUAL TO THE INITIAL TERM.  THIS 
AGREEMENT IS TERMINABLE BY EITHER PARTY UPON WRITTEN NOTICE BY FIRST CLASS USPS MAIL TO “CUSTOMER 
SERVICE, 7340 W. 15TH STREET, FOREST PARK, IL 60130” OR BY EMAIL TO CUSTOMERSERVICE@ILLINOISALARM.COM, 
MADE AT LEAST THIRTY DAYS PRIOR TO THE END OF THE INITIAL TERM OR ANY RENEWAL TERM. THIS AGREEMENT 
SHALL NOT BECOME BINDING ON ALARM CO UNTIL EITHER ONE (1) SIGNED BY AN OFFICER OF ALARM CO OR TWO (2) 
ALARM CO PROVIDES THE EQUIPMENT OR STARTS THE ADDITIONAL SERVICE. 

SUB ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED ABOVE INCLUDING THE LIMITATION 
OF LIABILITY (PAR. 12), INDEMNIFICATION OF ALARM CO (PAR. 13) AND WAIVER OF SUBROGATION (PAR. 14) ARE MADE 
PART OF THIS AGREEMENT AND ARE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE HEREIN.  

By: ____________________________________________    Approved: ________________________________________________ 
Alarm Co Representative     Alarm Co Officer  

Primary Phone Number: __________________________    Social Security Number (Last 4 Digits): ________________________ 

Primary Email Address: __________________________     FEIN or Tax ID: ____________________________________________ 

Title: __________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________  _________________________________________________________ 

Subscriber Printed Name      Date    Subscriber Signature                                                       Date 
ABSOLUTE GUARANTEE: I hereby absolutely guarantee the payment of the financial obligations contained in this Agreement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C843E38D-5498-4B7F-A7C1-C55281345889

AUGUSTINO R. CALDERONE, II

mamidei@forestpark.net

MOSES AMIDEI

MOSES AMIDEI NOTE: AGREEMENT VALID
UNTIL MAY 1, 2023.  MA



      
7340 W. 15Th Street 
Forest Park, IL 60130 
708-366-2400  
IL-127-000167 
 

Page | 1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Village of Forest Park Village Hall 
517 Des Plaines Avenue 
Forest Park, IL 60130 
System Description: 
One (1) Conventional FACP 
Five (5) Notification Devices 
Eleven (11) Heat Detectors 
Fifty-Two (52) Smoke Detectors 
 
Village of Forest Park Fire Department 
517 Des Plaines Avenue 
Forest Park, IL 60130 
One (1) Conventional FACP 
One (1) Annunciator 
Three (3) Pull Stations 
Six (6) Notification Devices 
Thirteen (13) Heat Detectors 
Fourteen (14) Smoke Detectors 
 
Village of Forest Park Howard Mohr Community Center 
7640 Jackson Blvd. 
Forest Park, IL 60130 
One (1) Conventional FACP 
Five (5) Notification Devices 
Seven (7) Heat Detectors 
Eight (8) Pull Stations 
Fourteen (14) Smoke Detectors 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C843E38D-5498-4B7F-A7C1-C55281345889



      
7340 W. 15Th Street 
Forest Park, IL 60130 
708-366-2400  
IL-127-000167 
 

Page | 2 
 

 

Village of Forest Park Public Works 

7343 15th Street, Forest Park, IL 60130 

One (1) Conventional FACP 

Points of Connection for Sprinkler 

 

Village of Forest Park Police Detectives 

501 Des Plaines Avenue, Forest Park, IL 60130 

One (1) Addressable FACP 

Two (2) Addressable Pull Stations 

Twelve (12) Addressable Smoke Detectors 

Six (6) Strobes 

Five (5) Horn Strobes  

 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C843E38D-5498-4B7F-A7C1-C55281345889



 
 

 
Illinois ALARM – 7340 W. 15th Street, Forest Park, Illinois 60130 

Phone (708) 366-2400       Fax (708) 366-2419     www.illinoisalarm.com  
Private Alarm Contractors Agency License # 127-000167 

Y:\IASdocuments\Documents\Confidential Subscriber Sheets\CONFIDENTIAL SUBSCRIBER DOCUMENT 2021.docx 
 

 
Confidential Subscriber Information Document 

 
Service Location Information:  

Premise 
Name:  

    

Address:      

City:    State:   Zip:   

Contact 
Person(s) on 
Premise:  

   

Premise  
Telephone:  

  Email:     Fax:   

 
 
 

Owners Name and Information:  
Name:     

Address:     

City:    State:   Zip:   

Telephone:    Email:    Fax:   

 
 

Commercial / Industrial Hours of Operation – Residential Does Not Apply: 

Is Subscriber receiving Supervised or Unsupervised Opening & Closing Reporting? 
Yes          No        

 
Sunday Open:__________ Sunday Close:__________ Monday Open:____________ Monday Close:__________  

 
Tuesday Open:__________ Tuesday Close:__________ Wednesday Open:__________ Wednesday Close:__________  

 
Thursday Open:__________ Thursday Close:__________ Friday Open:__________ Friday Close:__________ 

 
 Saturday Open:__________ Saturday Close:__________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C843E38D-5498-4B7F-A7C1-C55281345889



 
 

 
Illinois ALARM – 7340 W. 15th Street, Forest Park, Illinois 60130 

Phone (708) 366-2400       Fax (708) 366-2419     www.illinoisalarm.com  
Private Alarm Contractors Agency License # 127-000167 

Y:\IASdocuments\Documents\Confidential Subscriber Sheets\CONFIDENTIAL SUBSCRIBER DOCUMENT 2021.docx 
 

 
Billing Information (If different than above or if your credit card has a separate 

billing address): 
 
 

Billing 
Contact 
Name:  

    

Billing 
Address:  

    

Billing 
City:  

   Billing 
State:  

 Billing 
Zip:  

  

Billing 
Telephone:  

  Billing Email:    Billing Fax:   

 
Billing Preferences for Deposit / Final Billing 

 
I would like to pay via Credit Card:  We accept Visa, Master Card or Discover. Processing 

Fee(s) will apply 
I would like to pay via Bank Account ACH: 
 

Our financial institution will require an additional 
document and a copy of a voided check and your IAS 

representative will provide you the required document. 
A ten (10) day setup and processing time will be 

required 
I would Require an invoice and will pay upon receipt 
of invoice:  

Would you like the invoice emailed?  Yes            No 

 
Billing Preferences for Recurring Services: 

 
I would like to pay via Credit Card:  We accept Visa, Master Card or Discover. Processing 

Fee(s) will apply 
I would like to pay via Bank Account ACH:  Our financial institution will require an additional 

document and a copy of a voided check and your IAS 
representative will provide you the required document. 

A ten (10) day setup and processing time will be 
required 

I would Require an invoice and will pay upon receipt 
of invoice: 

Would you like the invoice emailed?  Yes            No 

 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C843E38D-5498-4B7F-A7C1-C55281345889



 
 

 
Illinois ALARM – 7340 W. 15th Street, Forest Park, Illinois 60130 

Phone (708) 366-2400       Fax (708) 366-2419     www.illinoisalarm.com  
Private Alarm Contractors Agency License # 127-000167 

Y:\IASdocuments\Documents\Confidential Subscriber Sheets\CONFIDENTIAL SUBSCRIBER DOCUMENT 2021.docx 
 

Emergency Call List: 
Contact persons at premise are required of who will be using the alarm system and that will be contacted to respond in an emergency, after the 

authorities have been notified. This allows access to account information, monitoring information, (if applicable), and the authority to request tech 
support and/or authorize service.   

*ALARM CODE*A four digit number programmed into the burglar alarm system keypad for each individual user to arm and disarm system *PASS CODE / 
WORD*A word or numbers for each individual user for identification when communicating to Illinois Alarm or Central Station Monitoring. This allows each 

user to cancel unwanted alarm signals, put systems on and off test and authorize service.  
Burglar Alarm Systems: Alarm Code and Pass Code/Word maybe the same.  

Name:  
  Cell 

Phone: 
 

Alarm Code: BA Systems 4-
Digits:  

 Alternate 
Phone: 

 

Remote App. Certificate for BA 
Systems Only? Systems 4-Digits: 

Yes:              
 
No:  

Email 
Address: 

 

Central Station / IAS  Pass 
Code/ Word: 

 

24/7/365 Access or Restricted 
Access? 

 

Name:  
  Cell 

Phone: 
 

Alarm Code: BA Systems 4-
Digits:  

 Alternate 
Phone:  

 

Remote App. Certificate for BA 
Systems Only? Systems 4-Digits: 

Yes:  
 
No:  

Email 
Address: 

 

Central Station / IAS  Pass 
Code/ Word: 

 

24/7/365 Access or Restricted 
Access? 

 

Name:  
  Cell 

Phone:  
 

Alarm Code: BA Systems 4-
Digits:  

 Alternate 
Phone  

 

Remote App. Certificate for BA 
Systems Only? Systems 4-Digits:  

Yes:  
 
No:  

Email 
Address: 

 

Central Station / IAS  Pass 
Code/ Word: 

 

24/7/365 Access or Restricted 
Access? 

 

Name:  
  Cell 

Phone:  
 

Alarm Code: BA Systems 4-
Digits  

 Alternate 
Phone: 

 

Remote App. Certificate for BA 
Systems Only? Systems 4-Digits: 

Yes:  
 
No:  

Email 
Address: 

 

Central Station / IAS  Pass 
Code/ Word: 

 

24/7/365 Access or Restricted 
Access? 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C843E38D-5498-4B7F-A7C1-C55281345889



 
 

 
Illinois ALARM – 7340 W. 15th Street, Forest Park, Illinois 60130 

Phone (708) 366-2400       Fax (708) 366-2419     www.illinoisalarm.com  
Private Alarm Contractors Agency License # 127-000167 

Y:\IASdocuments\Documents\Confidential Subscriber Sheets\CONFIDENTIAL SUBSCRIBER DOCUMENT 2021.docx 
 

 
Authorized Personnel: 

Persons not listed above that will be using the alarm system.   
This allows each user access to account information, Central Station access and the authority to authorize service.  

Name:  
  

Name:  
 

Alarm Code: BA 
Systems 4-Digits:  

 Alarm Code: BA 
Systems 4-Digits: 

 

Central Station/IAS  
Pass Code/ Word:   Central Station/IAS  

Pass Code/ Word:  
 

24/7/365 Access or 
Restricted Access?  24/7/365 Access or 

Restricted Access? 
 

Name:  
  

Name:  
 

Alarm Code: BA 
Systems 4-Digits: 

 Alarm Code: BA 
Systems 4-Digits:  

 

Central Station/IAS  
Pass Code/ Word:  

 Central Station/IAS  
Pass Code/ Word:  

 

24/7/365 Access or 
Restricted Access? 

 24/7/365 Access or 
Restricted Access? 

 

 
Additional Subscriber Information: 

• Shall you require additional users, please contact your representative 
• The account processing department will not be able to forward your information to the 

operations department until we have received all the required documents, deposit and if 
applicable schedule of trade(s) for your project. 

• If your project is tax-exempt, please provide a copy of your current tax-exempt form. 
• Upon receiving all required documents an Illinois Alarm representative will be in contact with 

your billing department for securely obtain any required billing information. Please advise them 
we will be calling.  

• Please remit payment to Illinois Alarm Service, Inc. 
Att: Accounts Processing 

7340 W. 15th Street 
Forest Park, IL 60130 

 

                                                  

 

Subscriber Name:                                                 Subscriber Signature: 

        

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C843E38D-5498-4B7F-A7C1-C55281345889

MOSES AMIDEI



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: C843E38D54984B7FA7C1C55281345889 Status: Sent

Subject: Hello Moses, - Updated terms & conditions per request

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 10 Signatures: 0 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Augustino Calderone, II

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

7340 W. 15th Street

Forest Park, IL  60130

gus@illinoisalarm.com

IP Address: 75.27.56.63    

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             7/15/2022 10:27:25 AM

Holder: Augustino Calderone, II

             gus@illinoisalarm.com

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
MOSES AMIDEI

mamidei@forestpark.net

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None), Authentication

Sent: 7/15/2022 10:33:42 AM

Viewed: 7/15/2022 10:37:30 AM 

Authentication Details
Phone Auth: 
      Transaction: fc67ab46-ff72-422e-944d-21a8fdbddc2e
      Result: passed
      Vendor ID: Prove
      Type: PhoneAuth
      Performed: 7/15/2022 10:37:20 AM
      Phone: +1 708-615-6201 (recipient-provided)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 7/15/2022 10:37:30 AM
      ID: b12620c2-a1da-4133-bd2c-9dd1e0ca3a3d

Anthony T. Calderone

tony@illinoisalarm.com

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None), Authentication

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 7/15/2022 10:33:42 AM



Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  
From time to time, Gus Calderone (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to 

you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for 

providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign, Inc. 

(DocuSign) electronic signing system. Please read the information below carefully and 

thoroughly, and if you can access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to 

these terms and conditions, please confirm your agreement by clicking the ‘I agree’ button at the 

bottom of this document.  

Getting paper copies  
At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 

to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after signing session and, if you 

elect to create a DocuSign signer account, you may access them for a limited period of time 

(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 

send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 

$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 

procedure described below.  

Withdrawing your consent  
If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below.  

Consequences of changing your mind  
If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. To indicate to us that you are changing your mind, you must 

withdraw your consent using the DocuSign ‘Withdraw Consent’ form on the signing page of a 

DocuSign envelope instead of signing it. This will indicate to us that you have withdrawn your 

consent to receive required notices and disclosures electronically from us and you will no longer 

be able to use the DocuSign system to receive required notices and consents electronically from 

us or to sign electronically documents from us.  

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  
Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us.  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 11/19/2016 12:00:22 PM
Parties agreed to: MOSES AMIDEI



How to contact Gus Calderone:  

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: gus@illinoisalarm.com 

To advise Gus Calderone of your new e-mail address  

To let us know of a change in your e-mail address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at gus@illinoisalarm.com and in the 

body of such request you must state: your previous e-mail address, your new e-mail address.  We 

do not require any other information from you to change your email address..   

In addition, you must notify DocuSign, Inc. to arrange for your new email address to be reflected 

in your DocuSign account by following the process for changing e-mail in the DocuSign system.  

To request paper copies from Gus Calderone  
To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an e-mail to gus@illinoisalarm.com and in the 

body of such request you must state your e-mail address, full name, US Postal address, and 

telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any.  

To withdraw your consent with Gus Calderone  

To inform us that you no longer want to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 

i. decline to sign a document from within your DocuSign session, and on the subsequent 

page, select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an e-mail to gus@illinoisalarm.com and in the body of such request you must 

state your e-mail, full name, US Postal Address, and telephone number. We do not need 

any other information from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your 

withdrawing consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a longer 

time to process..  

Required hardware and software  

Operating 

Systems: 
Windows® 2000, Windows® XP, Windows Vista®; Mac OS® X 

Browsers: 

Final release versions of Internet Explorer® 6.0 or above (Windows only); 

Mozilla Firefox 2.0 or above (Windows and Mac); Safari™ 3.0 or above 

(Mac only) 

PDF Reader: Acrobat® or similar software may be required to view and print PDF files 

Screen 

Resolution: 
800 x 600 minimum 



Enabled Security 

Settings: 
Allow per session cookies 

** These minimum requirements are subject to change. If these requirements change, you will be 

asked to re-accept the disclosure. Pre-release (e.g. beta) versions of operating systems and 

browsers are not supported.  

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive materials electronically  
To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please verify that you were 

able to read this electronic disclosure and that you also were able to print on paper or 

electronically save this page for your future reference and access or that you were able to e-mail 

this disclosure and consent to an address where you will be able to print on paper or save it for 

your future reference and access. Further, if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures 

exclusively in electronic format on the terms and conditions described above, please let us know 

by clicking the ‘I agree’ button below.  

By checking the ‘I agree’ box, I confirm that:  

 I can access and read this Electronic CONSENT TO ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF 

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURES document; and 

 I can print on paper the disclosure or save or send the disclosure to a place where I can 

print it, for future reference and access; and 

 Until or unless I notify Gus Calderone as described above, I consent to receive from 

exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, 

acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to me by  Gus Calderone during the course of my relationship with you. 



EXHIBIT "A" 

LICENSE SUPPLEMENT 

 This License Supplement (Supplement) is made this ____ day of _______, _______, 
between the Village of Forest Park, an Illinois municipal corporation (LICENSOR), and Chicago 
SMSA Limited Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless an Illinois limited partnership, whose principal 
place of business is One Verizon Way, Mail Stop 4AW100, Basking Ridge, NJ 07920 
(LICENSEE). 
 
1.  Master License Agreement. This Supplement is a Supplement as referenced in that certain 
Master License Agreement between the Village of Forest Park and Chicago SMSA Limited 
Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless an Illinois limited partnership, dated October 17, 2019, (the 
Agreement). All of the terms and conditions of the Agreement are incorporated herein by reference 
and made a part hereof without the necessity of repeating or attaching the Agreement. In the event 
of a contradiction, modification or inconsistency between the terms of the Agreement and this 
Supplement, the terms of this Supplement shall govern (note – Supplement should govern because 
there may be some site specific items that might have to be addressed at an individual location 
which might create a conflict with Agreement terms). Capitalized terms used in this Supplement 
shall have the same meaning described for them in the Agreement unless otherwise indicated 
herein. 
2.  Premises. The Property owned by LICENSOR is located at 7799 Van Buren St., Forest 
Park, IL 60130.  The Premises licensed by the LICENSOR to the LICENSEE hereunder is 
described on Exhibit “1” attached hereto and made a part hereof.   
3.  Term. The Commencement Date and the Term of this Supplement shall be as set forth in 
Paragraph 5 of the Agreement.  
4. Consideration. License Fees under this Supplement shall be Two Hundred Dollars 
($200.00) per year, payable to LICENSOR at 517 Des Plaines Avenue, Forest Park, Illinois 60130. 
Thereafter, License Fees will be due at each annual anniversary of the “Commencement Date” of 
this Supplement. LICENSEE shall obtain electrical service and provide for a separate meter and 
billing from the applicable utility provider.   
 
5. Site Specific Terms. (Include any site-specific terms) 
 
 



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands and affixed their 
respective seal the day and year first above written. 
 
LICENSOR 
Village of Forest Park,  
an Illinois Municipal Corporation 
       
By:  
Name:  
Title:    
 
LICENSEE 
Chicago SMSA Limited Partnership 
d/b/a Verizon Wireless an Illinois limited partnership 
 
By:  
Name:  
Title:    
 
 
  



EXHIBIT 1 
Premises 

Site Location: 7799 Van Buren St., Forest Park, IL 60130 

Longitude: 41.879242 

Latitude: -87.820531 

Pole Type: Light Pole 

Pole Owner: The Village of Forest Park 

VZW Site Name: OPB_135 

VZW Project No: 20191941649 

Site Photo 

 





RESOLUTION NO. R - ___________ - 22 
 

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF  
THE MEMBERS TO THE FOREST PARK FIRE AND POLICE COMMISSION 

 
 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village of Forest Park (“Village”) are 

authorized though 65 ILCS 5/10-2.1-1 and 65 ILCS 5/10-2.1-2 to appoint a Fire and Police 

Commission of three (3) members to have terms of three (3) years each; and, 

 WHEREAS, appointments shall be made so that in each three (3) year period, the terms 

of one (1) member shall expire in one (1) year, and the term of one (1) member shall expire in each 

of the remaining two (2) years; and, 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village have appointed Village residents at 

various times to serve as members of the Fire and Police Commission for three (3) year terms; and, 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village have reviewed the appointments and 

terms of current Fire and Police Commission members and desire to confirm and ratify the 

appointments and term expirations. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Village Council of the 

Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows:   

 Section 1. The corporate authorities of the Village hereby confirm and ratify the 

appointments of the following members to the Forest Park Fire and Police Commission: 

 Appointees     Appointment Term Expiration 
 Jerry Bramwell    April 30, 2023 
 Cara Smith     April 30, 2024 
 Tim Gillian     April 30, 2025 
  
 
  



 Section 2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 25th 

day of July, 2022.  

 
 AYES: ___________________________ 
 
 NAYS: ___________________________ 
 
 ABSENT: _________________________  
 

APPROVED by me this 25th day of July, 2022. 
 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor  
 
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of July, 2022. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Clerk  
 



Forest Park U.S. Armed 
Forces Reserve Center

















1078098.1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-22 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR USAR REAL 

PROPERTY EXCHANGE FOR THE UNITED STATES ARMED FORCES RESERVE 
CENTER LOCATED IN FOREST PARK, ILLINOIS  

 
 WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Army has issued a Notice of Availability for United 

States Army Reserve Real Estate Exchange (“NOA”) for the Forest Park Army Reserve Center-

17666 Site N62757 located at 7402 Roosevelt Road, Forest Park, Illinois (the “Property”); and 

  WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, 

Illinois (the “Village”) has determined it is in the best interests of the Village and its residents to 

explore the opportunity to acquire the Property 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Village Council of the 

Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Finding of the Corporate Authorities 

 In the opinion of a majority of  the Corporate Authorities of  the Village, it is advisable 

and in the public interest for the Village explore the acquisition of the Property and submit a 

non-binding response to the NOA. 

 Section 2. Response to NOA  

 The Village Clerk and Village Engineer, Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd., are 

hereby authorized respond to the NOA by submitting the Application for USAR Real Property 

Exchange: Forest Park U.S. Armed Forces Reserve Center in the form substantially attached 

hereto as Exhibit A (the “Application”), said Application being for purposes of exploring the 

acquisition of the Property and not binding on the Village.  

  

 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

 

 



1078098.1 

Section 3. Effective Date 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect is passage in the manner provided by law.  

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this ____ 

day of ________, 2022. 

AYES:  ___________________ 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this ____ day of ___________, 2022 
                                                                                                                   
      _______________________________  

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, and published in  
pamphlet form this _____ day of ___________, 2022. 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1078098.1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

APPLICATION FOR USAR REAL PROPERTY EXCHANGE: FOREST PARK U.S. ARMED 
FORCES RESERVE CENTER 



1076297-1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-________-22 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE  
EXECUTION OF A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES  

PROPOSAL FOR PHASE II DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES BY  
AND BETWEEN CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD.  

AND THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK FOR THE  
WILCOX STREET WATERMAIN AND RESURFACING PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park ("Village") proposes to install a watermain under 

and resurface Wilcox Street, from Des Plaines Avenue west to the railroad tracks ("Project"), 

utilizing a combination of the Village’s Motor Fuel Taxes and Water Fund for the Project cost; 

and 

 WHEREAS, due to the nature of the Project, it is hereby determined that the professional 

design services of a professional engineer is required and the ability and fitness of Christopher B. 

Burke Engineering, Ltd. ("Burke") will be integral in the implementation of the Project; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village has a prior, satisfactory relationship with Burke, and it is 

advisable, necessary and in the best interest of the Village to enter into a contract with Burke to 

provide professional design engineering services for phase II design to implement the Project. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preambles to this Resolution are 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 Section 2. It is hereby determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 

interest that the Village contract for professional design engineering services for phase II design 

with Burke to implement the Project. 

 Section 3. That certain "Wilcox Street Watermain and Resurfacing Project - 

Professional Engineering Services Proposal for Phase II Design" between the Village and Burke 



1076297-1 

("Proposal"), a copy of which is attached hereto marked as Exhibit A, for the Project is hereby 

approved. 

Section 4. The Mayor be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute and the 

Village Clerk to attest on behalf of the Village the Proposal for the Project substantially in the 

form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with such changes therein as may be approved by the officials 

executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of the approval of 

such changes, if any. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 25th day 
of July, 2022. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 25th day of July, 2022. 
 
  
        
 ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this _______ day of July, 2022. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



1076297-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Wilcox Street Watermain and Resurfacing Project –  
Professional Engineering Services Proposal for Phase II Design 



 

 

 
 

 
July 6, 2022 
 
Village of Forest Park 
517 Des Plaines Avenue 
Forest Park, IL 60130  
 
Attention: Mr. Moses Amidei, Village Administrator 
 
Subject: Wilcox Street Watermain and Resurfacing Project - Professional Engineering 

Services Proposal for Phase II Design  
 
Dear Mr. Amidei: 
 
Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. (CBBEL) is pleased to present this proposal for 
design engineering services related to the Wilcox Street Watermain and Resurfacing 
Project in the Village of Forest Park. Included in this proposal are our Understanding of the 
Assignment, Scope of Work and Estimated Fee. 
   
 

UNDERSTANDING OF THE ASSIGNMENT  
 
We understand the Village wants to install watermain on Wilcox Street from Des Plaines 
Avenue 2 blocks west to the railroad tracks. The Village also wants to resurface Wilcox 
Street from Des Plaines Avenue to the railroad tracks. 
 
It is our understanding that the Village will be using local funding to cover Design and 
Construction Engineering and a combination of MFT and Forest Park Water Fund to cover 
the roadway and watermain construction costs respectively.  
  
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

CBBEL proposes the following scope of engineering services to complete the project. 
 
Task 1 – Topographic Survey 
CBBEL will perform a topographic survey of the proposed water main location – Wilcox 
Street from Des Plaines Avenue to the railroad tracks. The survey will be used as a base 
map for water main design purposes. Included are the following survey tasks: 
 
1. Horizontal Control:  Utilizing state plane coordinates (NAD ’83, Illinois East Zone 

1201); CBBEL will establish recoverable primary control.   



  

2 
 

2. Vertical Control:  CBBEL will establish elevations on new horizontal control points 
based on NAVD ’88 Vertical Datum.   

3. Field topographic survey to locate and measure pavement, curbs, trees, fences, 
walks, curb cuts, utilities, approximate right-of-way and other pertinent site features. 

4. Field Survey to determine detailed utility structure rim and invert elevations, pipe ize 
and material. 

5. Field level run to establish vertical control. 
6. Office calculations and plotting of field data. 
7. Drafting of an existing conditions plan in a Microstation drawing file.  
 
CBBEL will create design base sheets from the survey at a scale of 1” = 20’. This task will 
also include identification of approximate roadway right-of-way. 
 
Task 2 – Pavement and Soils Investigation 
CBBEL will utilize our subconsultant, Rubino Engineering, to perform borings. The results 
of the borings will assist in design and preparation of quantities. The subconsultant will also 
perform Clean Construction or Demolition Debris (CCDD) testing so that soils may be 
disposed of in accordance with Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) 
requirements consisting of a Potentially Impacted Property (PIP) evaluation and LPC-662 
soil analysis.  
 
Task 3 – Sewer Cleaning and Televising 
CBBEL will utilize a subconsultant to perform sewer cleaning and televising of combination 
sewer. CBBEL will then review the televising reports and include a repair or lining scope of 
work to the plans.  
 
Task 4 – Field Reconnaissance 
This task will consist of inspecting the Village structures within the roadway to determine if 
they should be adjusted, reconstructed, or replaced. Field reconnaissance shall also include 
assessment of curb and sidewalk to determine replacement scope. 
 
Task 5 – Utility Coordination   
Based on utility information obtained as part of Task 1 and a JULIE design locate, CBBEL 
will draft existing utilities on the plans and send them back to the utility companies for 
verification of their locations.  CBBEL will identify potential conflicts and coordinate any 
required relocation work with the respective utilities.   
 
Task 6 – MFT Coordination 
This task will consist of coordinating with IDOT to make the project eligible to use MFT 
funding for the roadway portion of the project.  
 
Task 7 – Preparation of Plans and Specifications   
This task will consist of preparing detailed engineering plans, specifications, and an 
Engineer’s opinion of probable cost. The plans will be prepared with the topographic survey 
as a base map. 
 
Task 8 – Permitting  
This task will consist of preparing a permit application to the Metropolitan Water 
Reclamation District (MWRD) for qualified sewer construction and preparing a permit 



3 

application to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) for watermain 
construction.  

Task 9 – Bidding Assistance   
CBBEL will advertise for bidding, distribute plans and specifications to all bidders, and hold 
a bid opening.  CBBEL will review and tabulate all the bids and make a recommendation of 
award. 

ESTIMATE OF FEE 

Our Estimate of Fee is $76,987.00 as shown on the attached exhibit A.  

We will bill you at the hourly rates specified on the attached Schedule of Charges and 
establish our contract in accordance with the attached General Terms and Conditions. 
Direct costs for blueprints, photocopying, mailing, overnight delivery, messenger services 
and report compilation are included in the Fee Estimate. These General Terms and 
Conditions are expressly incorporated into and are an integral part of this contract for 
professional services.  

Please sign and return one copy of this agreement as an indication of acceptance and 
notice to proceed.  Please feel free to contact us anytime. 

Sincerely,  

Michael E. Kerr, PE 
President 

Encl. Schedule of Charges 
General Terms and Conditions 

THIS PROPOSAL, SCHEDULE OF CHARGES AND GENERAL TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS ACCEPTED FOR THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK: 

BY: _______________________________________

TITLE: _______________________________________ 

DATE:  _______________________________________ 

JFA 
N:\PROPOSALS\ADMIN\2021\Forest Park 2022 WM and Resurfacing\Forest Park Wilcox St WM and Resurfacing docx 



VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK EXHIBIT  A
Wilcox Avenue WM and Resurfacing
WORK EFFORT AND FEE STRUCTURE

Classification V IV III I/II V IV III II I
Rate ($/hr) $208.00 $170 00 $152.00 $121 00 $229.00 $196.00 $172 00 $126 00 $100.00 $177.00 $1.00 $1.00
Phase II - Design Engineering
Task 1 - Topographic Survey 1 2 2 20 20 8 53 6,901.00$           
Task 2 - Pavement and Soils Investigation 5700 0 5,700.00$           
Task 3 - Sewer Cleaning and Televising 2 24 13000 26 17 064.00$         
Task 4 - Field Reconaissance 6 16 22 3,680.00$           
Task 5 - Utility Coordination 4 4 8 16 2 692.00$           
Task 6 - MFT Coordination 12 12 2,496.00$           
Task 7 - Preparation of Plans and Specifications 40 160 30 230 32,990.00$         
Task 8 - Permitting 8 12 20 3,116.00$           
Task 9 - Bidding Assistance 8 4 12 2,148.00$           

Subtotal Cost = 76,787.00$         

Subtotals 80 0 40 180 1 2 10 20 20 38 391
Percentage of Hours 20 5% 0 0% 10.2% 46 0% 0 3% 0.5% 2.6% 5.1% 5.1% 9.7% 100.0%
Total Personnel Cost $16,640.00 $0.00 $6,080 00 $21,780.00 $229.00 $392.00 $1,720.00 $2,520.00 $2,000 00 $6,726.00 Running Cost = 76,787.00$         

Direct Cost = 200.00$              

TOTAL COST = 76,987.00$         

Engineer Survey
Total Hours Total Cost

Sub
CAD 

Manager
GeoTech 

Sub 

N:\PROPOSALS\ADMIN\2021\Forest Park 2022 WM and Resurfacing\Exhibit A Forest Park Wilcox St WM and Resurfacing xlsx



CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD. 
STANDARD CHARGES FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

APRIL,2020 
Charges* 

Personnel ($/Hr) 
Principal 275 
Engineer VI  251 
Engineer V  208 
Engineer IV  170 
Engineer III  152 
Engineer I/II  121 
Survey V 229 
Survey IV 196 
Survey III 172 
Survey II 126 
Survey I 100 
Engineering Technician V  198 
Engineering Technician IV  161 
Engineering Technician III  146 
Engineering Technician I/II        68 
CAD Manager  177 
Assistant CAD Manager 153 
CAD II  135 
GIS Specialist III 148 
GIS Specialist I/II   94 
Landscape Architect  170 
Landscape Designer I/II   94 
Environmental Resource Specialist V 216 
Environmental Resource Specialist IV 170 
Environmental Resource Specialist III 139 
Environmental Resource Specialist I/II   94 
Environmental Resource Technician  114 
Administrative  104 
Engineering Intern    63 
Information Technician III 130 
Information Technician I/II  116 

Direct Costs 
Outside Copies, Blueprints, Messenger, Delivery Services, Mileage Cost + 12% 

*Charges include overhead and profit

Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. reserves the right to increase these rates and costs by 5% 
after December 31, 2020. 



CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD. 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 1

1. Relationship Between Engineer and Client:  Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. 
(Engineer) shall serve as Client's professional engineer consultant in those phases of 
the Project to which this Agreement applies.  This relationship is that of a buyer and 
seller of professional services and as such the Engineer is an independent contractor in 
the performance of this Agreement and it is understood that the parties have not entered 
into any joint venture or partnership with the other.  The Engineer shall not be 
considered to be the agent of the Client. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall 
create a contractual relationship with a cause of action in favor of a third party against 
either the Client or Engineer. 

 
Furthermore, causes of action between the parties to this Agreement pertaining to acts 
of failures to act shall be deemed to have accrued and the applicable statute of 
limitations shall commence to run not later than the date of substantial completion. 

 
2. Responsibility of the Engineer:  Engineer will strive to perform services under this 

Agreement in accordance with generally accepted and currently recognized engineering 
practices and principles, and in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing in the same 
locality under similar conditions.  No other representation, express or implied, and no 
warranty or guarantee is included or intended in this Agreement, or in any report, 
opinion, document, or otherwise. 

 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary which may be contained in this Agreement or 
any other material incorporated herein by reference, or in any Agreement between the 
Client and any other party concerning the Project, the Engineer shall not have control or 
be in charge of and shall not be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures of construction, or the safety, safety precautions or programs 
of the Client, the construction contractor, other contractors or subcontractors performing 
any of the work or providing any of the services on the Project.  Nor shall the Engineer 
be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Client, or for the failure of the Client, any 
architect, engineer, consultant, contractor or subcontractor to carry out their respective 
responsibilities in accordance with the Project documents, this Agreement or any other 
agreement concerning the Project.  Any provision which purports to amend this provision 
shall be without effect unless it contains a reference that the content of this condition is 
expressly amended for the purposes described in such amendment and is signed by the 
Engineer. 

 
3. Changes:  Client reserves the right by written change order or amendment to make 

changes in requirements, amount of work, or engineering time schedule adjustments, 
and Engineer and Client shall negotiate appropriate adjustments acceptable to both 
parties to accommodate any changes, if commercially possible. 

 
4. Suspension of Services:  Client may, at any time, by written order to Engineer 

(Suspension of Services Order) require Engineer to stop all, or any part, of the services 
required by this Agreement.  Upon receipt of such an order, Engineer shall immediately 
comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the costs associated 
with the services affected by such order.  Client, however, shall pay all costs incurred by 
the suspension, including all costs necessary to maintain continuity and for the 



 

 2

resumptions of the services upon expiration of the Suspension of Services Order.  
Engineer will not be obligated to provide the same personnel employed prior to 
suspension, when the services are resumed, in the event that the period of suspension 
is greater than thirty (30) days.    

 
5. Termination:  This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days 

written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in 
accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party.  This 
Agreement may be terminated by Client, under the same terms, whenever Client shall 
determine that termination is in its best interests.  Cost of termination, including salaries, 
overhead and fee, incurred by Engineer either before or after the termination date shall 
be reimbursed by Client. 

 
6. Documents Delivered to Client:  Drawings, specifications, reports, and any other Project 

Documents prepared by Engineer in connection with any or all of the services furnished 
hereunder shall be delivered to the Client for the use of the Client.  Engineer shall have 
the right to retain originals of all Project Documents and drawings for its files.  
Furthermore, it is understood and agreed that the Project Documents such as, but not 
limited to reports, calculations, drawings, and specifications prepared for the Project, 
whether in hard copy or machine readable form, are instruments of professional service 
intended for one-time use in the construction of this Project.  These Project Documents 
are and shall remain the property of the Engineer.  The Client may retain copies, 
including copies stored on magnetic tape or disk, for information and reference in 
connection with the occupancy and use of the Project. 

 
When and if record drawings are to be provided by the Engineer, Client understands that 
information used in the preparation of record drawings is provided by others and 
Engineer is not responsible for accuracy, completeness, nor sufficiency of such 
information.  Client also understands that the level of detail illustrated by record 
drawings will generally be the same as the level of detail illustrated by the design 
drawing used for project construction.  If additional detail is requested by the Client to be 
included on the record drawings, then the Client understands and agrees that the 
Engineer will be due additional compensation for additional services. 

 
It is also understood and agreed that because of the possibility that information and data 
delivered in machine readable form may be altered, whether inadvertently or otherwise, 
the Engineer reserves the right to retain the original tapes/disks and to remove from 
copies provided to the Client all identification reflecting the involvement of the Engineer 
in their preparation.  The Engineer also reserves the right to retain hard copy originals of 
all Project Documentation delivered to the Client in machine readable form, which 
originals shall be referred to and shall govern in the event of any inconsistency between 
the two. 
 
The Client understands that the automated conversion of information and data from the 
system and format used by the Engineer to an alternate system or format cannot be 
accomplished without the introduction of inexactitudes, anomalies, and errors.  In the 
event Project Documentation provided to the Client in machine readable form is so 
converted, the Client agrees to assume all risks associated therewith and, to the fullest 



 

 3

extent permitted by law, to hold harmless and indemnify the Engineer from and against 
all claims, liabilities, losses, damages, and costs, including but not limited to attorney's 
fees, arising therefrom or in connection therewith. 
 

The Client recognizes that changes or modifications to the Engineer's instruments of 
professional service introduced by anyone other than the Engineer may result in adverse 
consequences which the Engineer can neither predict nor control.  Therefore, and in 
consideration of the Engineer's agreement to deliver its instruments of professional 
service in machine readable form, the Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by 
law, to hold harmless and indemnify the Engineer from and against all claims, liabilities, 
losses, damages, and costs, including but not limited to attorney's fees, arising out of or 
in any way connected with the modification, misinterpretation, misuse, or reuse by 
others of the machine readable information and data provided by the Engineer under 
this Agreement.  The foregoing indemnification applies, without limitation, to any use of 
the Project Documentation on other projects, for additions to this Project, or for 
completion of this Project by others, excepting only such use as may be authorized, in 
writing, by the Engineer. 

 

7. Reuse of Documents:  All Project Documents including but not limited to reports, 
opinions of probable costs, drawings and specifications furnished by Engineer pursuant 
to this Agreement are intended for use on the Project only.  They cannot be used by 
Client or others on extensions of the Project or any other project.  Any reuse, without 
specific written verification or adaptation by Engineer, shall be at Client's sole risk, and 
Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer from all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses including attorney's fees arising out of or resulting therefrom. 

 

The Engineer shall have the right to include representations of the design of the Project, 
including photographs of the exterior and interior, among the Engineer's promotional and 
professional materials. The Engineer's materials shall not include the Client's 
confidential and proprietary information if the Client has previously advised the Engineer 
in writing of the specific information considered by the Client to be confidential and 
proprietary. 

 

8. Standard of Practice:  The Engineer will strive to conduct services under this agreement 
in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members 
of the profession currently practicing in the same locality under similar conditions as of 
the date of this Agreement. 

 

9. Compliance With Laws:  The Engineer will strive to exercise usual and customary 
professional care in his/her efforts to comply with those laws, codes, ordinance and 
regulations which are in effect as of the date of this Agreement. 

 

  With specific respect to prescribed requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990 or certified state or local accessibility regulations (ADA), Client understands ADA is 
a civil rights legislation and that interpretation of ADA is a legal issue and not a design 
issue and, accordingly, retention of legal counsel (by Client) for purposes of 
interpretation is advisable.  As such and with respect to ADA, Client agrees to waive any 
action against Engineer, and to indemnify and defend Engineer against any claim arising 
from Engineer's alleged failure to meet ADA requirements prescribed. 



 

 
 

4

 
Further to the law and code compliance, the Client understands that the Engineer will 
strive to provide designs in accordance with the prevailing Standards of Practice as 
previously set forth, but that the Engineer does not warrant that any reviewing agency 
having jurisdiction will not for its own purposes comment, request changes and/or 
additions to such designs. In the event such design requests are made by a reviewing 
agency, but which do not exist in the form of a written regulation, ordinance or other 
similar document as published by the reviewing agency, then such design changes (at 
substantial variance from the intended design developed by the Engineer), if effected 
and incorporated into the project documents by the Engineer, shall be considered as 
Supplementary Task(s) to the Engineer's Scope of Service and compensated for 
accordingly. 

 
10. Indemnification:  Engineer shall indemnify and hold harmless Client up to the amount of 

this contract fee (for services) from loss or expense, including reasonable attorney's fees 
for claims for personal injury (including death) or property damage to the extent caused 
by the sole negligent act, error or omission of Engineer. 

 
Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer under this Agreement, from loss or 
expense, including reasonable attorney's fees, for claims for personal injuries (including 
death) or property damage arising out of the sole negligent act, error omission of Client. 

 
In the event of joint or concurrent negligence of Engineer and Client, each shall bear that 
portion of the loss or expense that its share of the joint or concurrent negligence bears to 
the total negligence (including that of third parties), which caused the personal injury or 
property damage. 

 
Engineer shall not be liable for special, incidental or consequential damages, including, 
but not limited to loss of profits, revenue, use of capital, claims of customers, cost of 
purchased or replacement power, or for any other loss of any nature, whether based on 
contract, tort, negligence, strict liability or otherwise, by reasons of the services rendered 
under this Agreement. 

 
11. Opinions of Probable Cost:  Since Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, 

materials or equipment, or over the Contractor(s) method of determining process, or 
over competitive bidding or market conditions, his/her opinions of probable Project 
Construction Cost provided for herein are to be made on the basis of his/her experience 
and qualifications and represent his/her judgement as a design professional familiar with 
the construction industry, but Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposal, 
bids or the Construction Cost will not vary from opinions of probable construction cost 
prepared by him/her.  If prior to the Bidding or Negotiating Phase, Client wishes greater 
accuracy as to the Construction Cost, the Client shall employ an independent cost 
estimator Consultant for the purpose of obtaining a second construction cost opinion 
independent from Engineer. 

 
12. Governing Law & Dispute Resolutions:  This Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with Articles previously set forth by (Item 9 of) this Agreement, 

together with the laws of the State of Illinois. 



 

 5

 
Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement, 
which can not be mutually resolved by the parties of this Agreement, shall be subject to 
mediation as a condition precedent to arbitration (if arbitration is agreed upon by the 
parties of this Agreement) or the institution of legal or equitable proceedings by either 
party. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien arising out of the Engineer's 
services, the Engineer may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with 
the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by 
arbitration.  

 

The Client and Engineer shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in 
question between them by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, 
shall be in accordance with the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American 
Arbitration Association currently in effect. Requests for mediation shall be filed in writing 
with the other party to this Agreement and with the American Arbitration Association. 
The request may be made concurrently with the filing of a demand for arbitration but, in 
such event, mediation shall proceed in advance of arbitration or legal or equitable 
proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days from the 
date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court 
order.  

 

The parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation 
shall be held in the place where the Project is located, unless another location is 
mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall be enforceable as 
settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  

 

13. Successors and Assigns:  The terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and assigns:  provided, 
however, that neither party shall assign this Agreement in whole or in part without the 
prior written approval of the other. 

 

14. Waiver of Contract Breach:  The waiver of one party of any breach of this Agreement or 
the failure of one party to enforce at any time, or for any period of time, any of the 
provisions hereof, shall be limited to the particular instance, shall not operate or be 
deemed to waive any future breaches of this Agreement and shall not be construed to 
be a waiver of any provision, except for the particular instance. 

 

15. Entire Understanding of Agreement:  This Agreement represents and incorporates the 
entire understanding of the parties hereto, and each party acknowledges that there are 
no warranties, representations, covenants or understandings of any kind, matter or 
description whatsoever, made by either party to the other except as expressly set forth 
herein.  Client and the Engineer hereby agree that any purchase orders, invoices, 
confirmations, acknowledgments or other similar documents executed or delivered with 
respect to the subject matter hereof that conflict with the terms of the Agreement shall 
be null, void & without effect to the extent they conflict with the terms of this Agreement. 

 

16. Amendment:  This Agreement shall not be subject to amendment unless another 
instrument is duly executed by duly authorized representatives of each of the parties and 
entitled "Amendment of Agreement". 



 

 6

 
17. Severability of Invalid Provisions:  If any provision of the Agreement shall be held to 

contravene or to be invalid under the laws of any particular state, county or jurisdiction 
where used, such contravention shall not invalidate the entire Agreement, but it shall be 
construed as if not containing the particular provisions held to be invalid in the particular 
state, country or jurisdiction and the rights or obligations of the parties hereto shall be 
construed and enforced accordingly. 

 
18. Force Majeure:  Neither Client nor Engineer shall be liable for any fault or delay caused 

by any contingency beyond their control including but not limited to acts of God, wars, 
strikes, walkouts, fires, natural calamities, or demands or requirements of governmental 
agencies. 

 
19. Subcontracts: Engineer may subcontract portions of the work, but each subcontractor 

must be approved by Client in writing. 
 
20. Access and Permits:  Client shall arrange for Engineer to enter upon public and private 

property and obtain all necessary approvals and permits required from all governmental 
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.  Client shall pay costs (including 
Engineer's employee salaries, overhead and fee) incident to any effort by Engineer 
toward assisting Client in such access, permits or approvals, if Engineer perform such 
services. 

 
21. Designation of Authorized Representative:  Each party (to this Agreement) shall 

designate one or more persons to act with authority in its behalf in respect to appropriate 
aspects of the Project.  The persons designated shall review and respond promptly to all 
communications received from the other party. 

 
22. Notices:  Any notice or designation required to be given to either party hereto shall be in 

writing, and unless receipt of such notice is expressly required by the terms hereof shall 
be deemed to be effectively served when deposited in the mail with sufficient first class 
postage affixed, and addressed to the party to whom such notice is directed at such 
party's place of business or such other address as either party shall hereafter furnish to 
the other party by written notice as herein provided. 

 
23. Limit of Liability:  The Client and the Engineer have discussed the risks, rewards, and 

benefits of the project and the Engineer's total fee for services.  In recognition of the 
relative risks and benefits of the Project to both the Client and the Engineer, the risks 
have been allocated such that the Client agrees that to the fullest extent permitted by 
law, the Engineer's total aggregate liability to the Client for any and all injuries, claims, 
costs, losses, expenses, damages of any nature whatsoever or claim expenses arising 
out of this Agreement from any cause or causes, including attorney's fees and costs, 
and expert witness fees and costs, shall not exceed the total Engineer's fee for 
professional engineering services rendered on this project as made part of this 
Agreement.  Such causes included but are not limited to the Engineer's negligence, 
errors, omissions, strict liability or breach of contract.  It is intended that this limitation 
apply to any and all liability or cause of action however alleged or arising, unless 
otherwise prohibited by law.  



 

 7

24. Client's Responsibilities: The Client agrees to provide full information regarding 
requirements for and about the Project, including a program which shall set forth the 
Client's objectives, schedule, constraints, criteria, special equipment, systems and site 
requirements.  

 

The Client agrees to furnish and pay for all legal, accounting and insurance counseling 
services as may be necessary at any time for the Project, including auditing services 
which the Client may require to verify the Contractor's Application for Payment or to 
ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has used the money paid by or on 
behalf of the Client. 
 

The Client agrees to require the Contractor, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to 
indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the Engineer, its consultants, and the employees 
and agents of any of them from and against any and all claims, suits, demands, 
liabilities, losses, damages, and costs ("Losses"), including but not limited to costs of 
defense, arising in whole or in part out of the negligence of the Contractor, its 
subcontractors, the officers, employees, agents, and subcontractors of any of them, or 
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not such 
Losses are caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder.  Specifically excluded from 
the foregoing are Losses arising out of the preparation or approval of maps, drawings, 
opinions, reports, surveys, change orders, designs, or specifications, and the giving of or 
failure to give directions by the Engineer, its consultants, and the agents and employees 
of any of them, provided such giving or failure to give is the primary cause of Loss. The 
Client also agrees to require the Contractor to provide to the Engineer the required 
certificate of insurance.  

 

The Client further agrees to require the Contractor to name the Engineer, its agents and 
consultants as additional insureds on the Contractor's policy or policies of 
comprehensive or commercial general liability insurance.  Such insurance shall include 
products and completed operations and contractual liability coverages, shall be primary 
and noncontributing with any insurance maintained by the Engineer or its agents and 
consultants, and shall provide that the Engineer be given thirty days, unqualified written 
notice prior to any cancellation thereof. 

 

In the event the foregoing requirements, or any of them, are not established by the 
Client and met by the Contractor, the Client agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
Engineer, its employees, agents, and consultants from and against any and all Losses 
which would have been indemnified and insured against by the Contractor, but were not. 
 

When Contract Documents prepared under the Scope of Services of this contract 
require insurance(s) to be provided, obtained and/or otherwise maintained by the 
Contractor, the Client agrees to be wholly responsible for setting forth any and all such 
insurance requirements.  Furthermore, any document provided for Client review by the 
Engineer under this Contract related to such insurance(s) shall be considered as sample 
insurance requirements and not the recommendation of the Engineer.  Client agrees to 
have their own risk management department review any and all insurance requirements 
for adequacy and to determine specific types of insurance(s) required for the project.  
Client further agrees that decisions concerning types and amounts of insurance are 



 

 8

specific to the project and shall be the product of the Client.  As such, any and all 
insurance requirements made part of Contract Documents prepared by the Engineer are 
not to be considered the Engineer's recommendation, and the Client shall make the final 
decision regarding insurance requirements. 

 
25. Information Provided by Others:  The Engineer shall indicate to the Client the 

information needed for rendering of the services of this Agreement.  The Client shall 
provide to the Engineer such information as is available to the Client and the Client's 
consultants and contractors, and the Engineer shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy 
and completeness thereof.  The Client recognizes that it is impossible for the Engineer 
to assure the accuracy, completeness and sufficiency of such information, either 
because it is impossible to verify, or because of errors or omissions which may have 
occurred in assembling the information the Client is providing.  Accordingly, the Client 
agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold the Engineer and the 
Engineer's subconsultants harmless from any claim, liability or cost (including 
reasonable attorneys' fees and cost of defense) for injury or loss arising or allegedly 
arising from errors, omissions or inaccuracies in documents or other information 
provided by the Client to the Engineer. 

 
26. Payment:  Client shall be invoiced once each month for work performed during the 

preceding period.  Client agrees to pay each invoice within thirty (30) days of its receipt. 
The client further agrees to pay interest on all amounts invoiced and not paid or objected 
to for valid cause within said thirty (30) day period at the rate of eighteen (18) percent 
per annum (or the maximum interest rate permitted under applicable law, whichever is 
the lesser) until paid.  Client further agrees to pay Engineer's cost of collection of all 
amounts due and unpaid after sixty (60) days, including court costs and reasonable 
attorney's fees, as well as costs attributed to suspension of services accordingly and as 
follows: 

 
Collection Costs.  In the event legal action is necessary to enforce the payment 
provisions of this Agreement, the Engineer shall be entitled to collect from the 
Client any judgement or settlement sums due, reasonable attorneys' fees, court 
costs and expenses incurred by the Engineer in connection therewith and, in 
addition, the reasonable value of the Engineer's time and expenses spent in 
connection with such collection action, computed at the Engineer's prevailing fee 
schedule and expense policies. 

 
Suspension of Services.  If the Client fails to make payments when due or 
otherwise is in breach of this Agreement, the Engineer may suspend 
performance of services upon five (5) calendar days' notice to the Client.  The 
Engineer shall have no liability whatsoever to the Client for any costs or damages 
as a result of such suspension caused by any breach of this Agreement by the 
Client.  Client will reimburse Engineer for all associated costs as previously set 
forth in (Item 4 of) this Agreement. 

 
27. When construction observation tasks are part of the service to be performed by the 

Engineer under this Agreement, the Client will include the following clause in the 
construction contract documents and Client agrees not to modify or delete it: 



 

 9

Kotecki Waiver.  Contractor (and any subcontractor into whose subcontract this 
clause is incorporated) agrees to assume the entire liability for all personal injury 
claims suffered by its own employees, including without limitation claims under 

the Illinois Structural Work Act, asserted by persons allegedly injured on the 
Project; waives any limitation of liability defense based upon the Worker's 
Compensation Act, court interpretations of said Act or otherwise; and to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, agrees to indemnify and hold harmless and 
defend Owner and Engineer and their agents, employees and consultants (the 
"Indemnitees") from and against all such loss, expense, damage or injury, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees, that the Indemnitees may sustain as a 

result of such claims, except to the extent that Illinois law prohibits indemnity for 
the Indemnitees' own negligence.  The Owner and Engineer are designated and 
recognized as explicit third party beneficiaries of the Kotecki Waiver within the 
general contract and all subcontracts entered into in furtherance of the general 
contract. 

 
28. Job Site Safety/Supervision & Construction Observation: The Engineer shall neither 

have control over or charge of, nor be responsible for, the construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences of procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in 
connection with the Work since they are solely the Contractor's rights and 
responsibilities. The Client agrees that the Contractor shall supervise and direct the work 
efficiently with his/her best skill and attention; and that the Contractor shall be solely 
responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of 
construction and safety at the job site. The Client agrees and warrants that this intent 
shall be carried out in the Client's contract with the Contractor. The Client further agrees 
that the Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all 
safety precautions and programs in connection with the work; and that the Contractor 
shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary 
protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to all employees on the subject site and all 
other persons who may be affected thereby. The Engineer shall have no authority to 
stop the work of the Contractor or the work of any subcontractor on the project. 

 
When construction observation services are included in the Scope of Services, the 
Engineer shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of the Contractor's 
operation, or as otherwise agreed to by the Client and the Engineer to: 1) become 
generally familiar with and to keep the Client informed about the progress and quality of 
the Work; 2) to strive to bring to the Client's attention defects and deficiencies in the 
Work and; 3) to determine in general if the Work is being performed in a manner 
indicating that the Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. However, the Engineer shall not be required to make exhaustive or 
continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. If the Client 
desires more extensive project observation, the Client shall request that such services 
be provided by the Engineer as Additional and Supplemental Construction Observation 
Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 
The Engineer shall not be responsible for any acts or omissions of the Contractor, 
subcontractor, any entity performing any portions of the Work, or any agents or 
employees of any of them. The Engineer does not guarantee the performance of the 



 

 10

Contractor and shall not be responsible for the Contractor's failure to perform its Work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents or any applicable laws, codes, rules or 
regulations. 

 
When municipal review services are included in the Scope of Services, the Engineer 
(acting on behalf of the municipality), when acting in good faith in the discharge of its 
duties, shall not thereby render itself liable personally and is, to the maximum extent 
permitted by law, relieved from all liability for any damage that may accrue to persons or 
property by reason of any act or omission in the discharge of its duties. Any suit brought 
against the Engineer which involve the acts or omissions performed by it in the 
enforcement of any provisions of the Client's rules, regulation and/or ordinance shall be 
defended by the Client until final termination of the proceedings. The Engineer shall be 
entitled to all defenses and municipal immunities that are, or would be, available to the 
Client. 

 
29. Insurance and Indemnification: The Engineer and the Client understand and agree that 

the Client will contractually require the Contractor to defend and indemnify the Engineer 
and/or any subconsultants from any claims arising from the Work. The Engineer and the 
Client further understand and agree that the Client will contractually require the 
Contractor to procure commercial general liability insurance naming the Engineer as an 
additional named insured with respect to the work. The Contractor shall provide to the 
Client certificates of insurance evidencing that the contractually required insurance 
coverage has been procured. However, the Contractor’s failure to provide the Client with 
the requisite certificates of insurance shall not constitute a waiver of this provision by the 
Engineer. 

 
The Client and Engineer waive all rights against each other and against the Contractor 
and consultants, agents and employees of each of them for damages to the extent 
covered by property insurance during construction. The Client and Engineer each shall 
require similar waivers from the Contractor, consultants, agents and persons or entities 
awarded separate contracts administered under the Client's own forces. 

 
30. Hazardous Materials/Pollutants: Unless otherwise provided by this Agreement, the 

Engineer and Engineer's consultants shall have no responsibility for the discovery, 
presence, handling, removal or disposal of or exposure of persons to hazardous 
materials/pollutants in any form at the Project site, including but not limited to 
mold/mildew, asbestos, asbestos products, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) or other 
toxic/hazardous/pollutant type substances. 

 
Furthermore, Client understands that the presence of mold/mildew and the like are 
results of prolonged or repeated exposure to moisture and the lack of corrective action.  
Client also understands that corrective action is a operation, maintenance and repair 
activity for which the Engineer is not responsible. 
 

 
June 13, 2005 
P:\Proposals\Terms and Conditions\GT&C 2005.061305.doc 



1076508_1  

RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-22 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SPECIFICATIONS AND  
AUTHORIZING THE ADVERTISING OF BIDS FOR  

THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 2022 SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park ("Village") has undertaken a program to develop plans 

and specifications for the 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project for the Village (the "Project"); and 

 WHEREAS, the Village desires to approve certain specifications and advertisement for bids for 

the Program. 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Village Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Finding of the Corporate Authorities 

 In the opinion of a majority of the corporate authorities of the Village, it is advisable, necessary 

and in the public interest that the Village approve the specifications for, advertise for bids and solicit 

bids for the Project. 

 Section 2. Advertisement for Bids 

 The Village Clerk and Village Engineer, Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd., are hereby 

authorized and directed to cause an advertisement and to solicit bids, pursuant to the public bid process 

and in substantially the form of the 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project Bid Package, attached hereto as 

Exhibit "A" and made a part hereof. 

 Section 3. Effective Date 

 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in the 

manner provided by law. 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 25th day of 

July, 2022. 

AYES:  ___________________ 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 25th day of July, 2022. 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, and published in  
pamphlet form this _____ day of July, 2022. 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk   



1076508_1  

 

EXHIBIT "A" 

2015 50/50 Sidewalk Program 
Proposal and Specifications 













BLR 12200 (Rev. 01/21/21)Page 5 of 6Printed 05/06/22

Route(s) (Street/Road Name)

Various
Section NumberCounty

Cook

Local Public Agency

Village of Forest Park

SIGNATURES

(If an individual) Signature of Bidder Date 

Business Address

City State Zip Code

(If a partnership) Firm Name

Signature Date 

Title 

Business Address

City State Zip Code

Insert the Names and Addresses of all Partners

(If a corporation) Corporate Name 

Signature Date 

Title 

Business Address

City State Zip Code

Insert Names of Officers President



BLR 12200 (Rev. 01/21/21)Page 6 of 6Printed 05/06/22

Secretary

Treasurer

Attest:

Secretary



Local Public Agency 
Proposal Bid Bond

Page 1 of 2 BLR 12230 (Rev. 01/21/21)Printed 07/09/22

WE, as PRINCIPAL, and

as SURETY, are held jointly,

severally and firmly bound unto the above Local Public Agency (hereafter referred to as "LPA") in the penal sum of 5% of the total bid 
price, or for the amount specified in the proposal documents in effect on the date of invitation for bids, whichever is the lesser sum.  We 
bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly pay to the LPA this sum under the conditions of this 
instrument. 
 WHEREAS THE CONDITION OF THE FOREGOING OBLIGATION IS SUCH that, the said PRINCIPAL is submitting a written 
proposal to the LPA acting through its awarding authority for the construction of the work designated as the above section. 
 THEREFORE if the proposal is accepted and a contract awarded to the PRINCIPAL by the LPA for the above designated section 
and the PRINCIPAL shall within fifteen (15) days after award enter into a formal contract, furnish surety guaranteeing the faithful 
performance of the work, and furnish evidence of the required insurance coverage, all as provided in the "Standard Specifications for Road 
and Bridge Construction" and applicable Supplemental Specifications, then this obligation shall become void; otherwise it shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 IN THE EVENT the LPA determines the PRINCIPAL has failed to enter into a formal contract in compliance with any 
requirements set forth in the preceding paragraph, then the LPA acting through its awarding authority shall immediately be entitled to 
recover the full penal sum set out above, together with all court costs, all attorney fees, and any other expense of recovery. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the said PRINCIPAL and the said SURETY have caused this instrument to be signed by their 

respective officers this
Day

of
Month and Year

Principal

Company Name Company Name

By: By:

Title Title

(If Principal is a joint venture of two or more contractors, the company names, and authorized signatures of each contractor must be 
affixed.)

Surety
Name of Surety Signature of Attorney-in-Fact

COUNTY OF

I , a Notary Public in and for said county do hereby certify that

(Insert names of individuals signing on behalf of PRINCIPAL & SURETY)

who are each personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument on behalf of 
PRINCIPAL and SURETY, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged respectively, that they signed and delivered said 
instruments as their free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 

Given under my hand and notarial seal this day of
Month and Year

Date commission expires

Notary Public Signature

(SEAL)

Local Public Agency County Section Number

Signature Date Date Signature

Date 

.

By:

Day

STATE OF IL



Page 2 of 2 BLR 12230 (Rev. 01/21/21)Printed 07/09/22

Local Public Agency County Section Number

ELECTRONIC BID BOND

Electronic bid bond is allowed (box must be checked by LPA if electronic bid bond is allowed)

The Principal may submit an electronic bid bond, in lieu of completing the above section of the Proposal Bid Bond Form. By providing an 
electronic bid bond ID code and signing below, the Principal is ensuring the identified electronic bid bond has been executed and the 
Principal and Surety are firmly bound unto the LPA under the conditions of the bid bond as shown above. (If PRINCIPAL is a joint venture 
of two or more contractors, an electronic bid bond ID code, company/Bidder name title and date must be affixed for each contractor in the 
venture.)
Electronic Bid Bond ID Code Company/Bidder Name

Signature Date

Title



State Zip Code

SP ITEM 
NUMBER

Unit Quantity

* X4240430 SQ FT 3,500

44000600 SQ FT 3,500SIDEWALK REMOVAL

Bidder's Total Proposal

Schedule of Prices

Contractor's Name

Schedule for Multiple Bids

Combination Letter Section Included in Combinations

Village of Forest Park Cook

Route(s) (Street/Road Name)

Forest Park 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project

PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK 5 INCH, SPECIAL

Schedule for Single Bid
(For complete information covering these items, see plans and specifications.)

Items Unit Price Total

Contractor's Address City

Local Public Agency County

Printed 7/11/2022 Page 1 of 1 BLR 12201 (Rev. 01/21/21)
Formerly BLR 1200A



Village of Forest Park 
Forest Park 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project 

CBBEL Project No. 000023.00111 
Page 1 

 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS ............................................................................................................... 2 
DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENT ............................................................................................ 2 
LOCATIONS OF IMPROVEMENT ............................................................................................... 2 
RESPONSIBLE BIDDER REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................... 2 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................... 3 
AWARD OR REJECTION ............................................................................................................ 3 
CLEAN CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS DISPOSAL REQUIREMENTS .................................................... 4 
MAINTENANCE OF ROADWAYS ............................................................................................... 4 
DUST CONTROL ....................................................................................................................... 4 
PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK 5 INCH, SPECIAL .................................................. 4 
DETECTABLE WARNINGS FOR PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS, FURNISH AND INSTALL .................... 5 
TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION ..................................................................................... 7 
AGGREGATE FOR TEMPORARY ACCESS ................................................................................... 8 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Village of Forest Park 
Forest Park 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project 

CBBEL Project No. 000023.00111 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
The  following Special Provisions supplement  the "Standard Specifications  for Road and Bridge 
Construction",  adopted  January  1,  2022  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  the  "Standard 
Specifications"); the latest edition of the "Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for 
Streets  and  Highways"  in  effect  on  the  date  of  invitation  for  bids;  and  the  "Supplemental 
Specifications  and  Recurring  Special  Provisions",  adopted  January  1,  2022,  indicated  on  the 
Check Sheet  included herein; all of which apply to and govern the construction of the Jackson 
Boulevard Lead Service Replacement Project for the Village of Forest Park, Illinois, and in case 
of conflict with any part, or parts, of  said  specifications,  the  said  special provisions  shall  take 
precedence and shall govern. 
 

DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENT 
 
The work to be performed consists of removing existing PCC sidewalks and  installing new PCC 
sidewalks.  
 

LOCATIONS OF IMPROVEMENT 
 
See enclosed location list. Locations and quantities subject to change.  
 

 
RESPONSIBLE BIDDER REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Village of Forest Park has responsible bidder requirements per the Village Code.  
 
Bidders shall submit with their proposal the following documents: 
 

  a.  Documents evidencing compliance with all applicable laws and ordinances 
prerequisite to doing business in Illinois. 

 
  b. A valid federal employer tax identification number, or, if an individual, a valid social 

security number. 
 
  c.  A statement of compliance with the equal opportunity employer provisions of 

Section 2000e of Chapter 21, Title 42 of the United States Code and Federal Executive 
Order Number 11246, as amended, by Executive Order 11375 (known as the Equal 
Opportunity Employer Provision). 

 



Village of Forest Park 
Forest Park 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project 

CBBEL Project No. 000023.00111 
Page 3 

 
 

  d.  Certificates of insurance indicating minimum insurance coverages as set forth in a bid 
specification, including general liability workers’ compensation, completed 
operations, automobile, hazardous occupations and products liability. 

 
  e.  Evidence of a written sexual harassment policy in compliance with the provisions of 

the Illinois Human Rights Act. 
 
  f.  A statement of compliance with the provisions of the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act. 
 
  g.  Evidence of compliance with the Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works 

Projects Act. 
 
  h.  Evidence of relevant experience that indicates the necessary capacity to perform the 

project and adequate references verifying the quality of work performed. 
 
  i.  For Village public works construction projects (construction of new Village facilities, 

renovation of existing Village facilities or Village road and/or utility construction 
projects) over fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00), evidence of participation in 
apprentice and training programs applicable to the work to be performed on the 
project which are approved by and registered with the United States Department of 
Labor Office of Apprenticeship and Training or are reasonably equivalent to such 
programs. 

 
  j.  For Village construction projects (construction of new Village facilities, renovation of 

existing facilities or Village road and/or utility construction projects), responsible 
bidders must demonstrate a good faith effort toward providing equal employment 
opportunities for persons to work as craftpersons, laborers, workers or mechanics 
consistent with the racial, ethnic and gender demographics of the labor force 
available in the Illinois Department of Employment Security Chicago‐Naperville‐Joliet 
Metropolitan Division which consists of Cook DeKalb, DuPage, Grundy, Kane, Kendall, 
McHenry and Will Counties. 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Contractor shall  follow Section 107 of  the  Illinois Department of Transportation Standard 
Specifications  for Road and Bridge Construction.   The  insurance shall also name the Village of 
Forest Park and Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. as additional insured. 

 
AWARD OR REJECTION 
 
The  bidding  requirements  and  conditions  for  contract  award  or  rejection  will  follow  IDOT‐
Bureau of Local Roads Check Sheet # 6, contained herein, with the following additions: 
 



Village of Forest Park 
Forest Park 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project 

CBBEL Project No. 000023.00111 
Page 4 

 
 
“The  Village  reserves  the  right  to  reduce  the  scope  of  work  based  upon  Village  budget 
constraints, without penalty or additional compensation to the contractor.” 
 
 

CLEAN CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS DISPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
All Removal or Excavation  items being disposed of at an uncontaminated soil  fill operation or 
Clean Construction and Demolition Debris (CCDD) fill site shall meet the requirements of Public 
Act 96‐1416.  All costs associated with meeting these requirements shall be included in the unit 
price costs  for  the associated Removal or Excavation  items  in  the Contract.   These costs shall 
include  but  are  not  limited  to  all  required  testing,  lab  analysis,  certification  by  a  licensed 
Professional Engineer, and State and Local tipping fees. 
 

MAINTENANCE OF ROADWAYS 
 
Effective:  September 30, 1985   Revised:  November 1, 1996 
 
Beginning  on  the  date  that  work  begins  on  this  project,  the  Contractor  shall  assume 
responsibility  for  normal  maintenance  of  all  existing  roadways  within  the  limits  of  the 
improvement.  This normal maintenance shall include all repair work deemed necessary by the 
Engineer,  but  shall  not  include  snow  removal  operations.    Traffic  control  and  protection  for 
maintenance of roadways will be provided by the Contractor as required by the Engineer. 
 

DUST CONTROL 
 
The Contractor  shall  take  appropriate measures  to  control dust  at  all  times  along  the entire 
project by means such as mechanical sweeper, water truck, or as directed by the Engineer. All 
concrete saw cutting shall utilize a “wet cutting method” and shall be thoroughly cleaned at the 
end of each working day. This work shall be included in the cost of the contract.  
 
 
PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK 5 INCH, SPECIAL 

 
In  addition  to  the  requirements of  Section 424 of  the  “Standard  Specifications  for Road  and 
Bridge Construction”  the Contractor  shall place embankment or excavate  in accordance with 
Sections  202  and  205  of  the  Standard  Specifications  in  order  to match  existing  grade  or  as 
directed by the engineer.  The Contractor shall place a 2” compacted aggregate base, Type B in 
accordance with Section 351 of  the Standard Specifications.   This work will be paid  for at the 
contract  unit  price  per  square  foot  for  PORTLAND  CEMENT  CONCRETE  SIDEWALK  5  INCH, 
SPECIAL. 
 
Where a sidewalk  intersects a driveway, the thickness of the concrete shall be  increased to 7 
inches and wire reinforcement mesh shall be  installed. The  increase  in concrete thickness and 



Village of Forest Park 
Forest Park 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project 

CBBEL Project No. 000023.00111 
Page 5 

 
 
wire  reinforcement  mesh  shall  be  considered  incidental  to  PORTLAND  CEMENT  CONCRETE 
SIDEWALK 5 INCH, SPECIAL. There will be no additional compensation for this work.  
 
Embankment and/or excavation and  the 2” aggregate base, Type B  shall not be measured or 
paid  for  separately,  but  shall  be  included  in  the  contract  unit  price  per  square  foot  for 
PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK 5 INCH, SPECIAL. 
 

 

DETECTABLE WARNINGS FOR PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS, FURNISH AND INSTALL 
 
Description   
 

1.  This work shall consist of furnishing and installing prefabricated detectable warning 
panels from approved material suppliers in the new Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) 
sidewalk at locations as directed by the OWNER.  The detectable warning panels shall 
be the “cast‐in‐place” model. 

 
Materials   
 
  2.  Approved material suppliers are as follows: 
 

a. Armor‐Tile Tactile Systems. www.armor‐tile.com 
b. ADA Solutions. www.adatile.com (Composite Panel Paver System) 
c. Detectile Corporation. www.detectile.com 
d. Or approved equal. 

 
The Contractor shall be responsible for furnishing the specified number of detectable 
warning panels from the approved  list of material suppliers. Prior to purchasing the 
detectable warnings,  the  Contractor  shall  submit  for  review  and  approval  by  the 
OWNER the proposed product information consisting of the following:  

 
a. Manufacturer’s certification stating the product  is fully compliant with the 

ADAAG. 
b. Manufacturer’s five year warranty. 
c. Manufacturer’s specifications  including the required materials, equipment, 

and installation procedures. Products that are colored shall be colored their 
entire thickness.  

d. Color chart (color to be determined by the OWNER). 
e. Sample Product Panel (24”x48”). 

 
The detectable warning panels to be purchased shall be 24”x48”. Any damaged panel 
shall be rejected and shall be replaced at no additional expense to the Owner.  

 



Village of Forest Park 
Forest Park 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project 

CBBEL Project No. 000023.00111 
Page 6 

 
 
Construction Requirements 
 

3.  The  Contractor  shall  install  the  panels  in  accordance  with  the  manufacturer’s 
recommendations and details. The panels shall be installed during the construction of 
the new PCC sidewalk and shall be an integral part of the walking surface. The top of 
the panel shall be flush with the surface of the sidewalk and only the actual domes 
shall project above the walking surface.  

 
The  detectable  warning  panels  shall  be  installed  at  curb  ramps,  medians  and 
pedestrian refuge islands, at‐grade railroad crossings, transit platform edges,  
 
and other  locations where pedestrians are  required  to  cross a hazardous vehicular 
way. Detectable warnings shall also be  installed at alleys and commercial entrances 
when permanent traffic control devices are present.  

 
Method of Measurement and Basis of Payment 
 

4.  This work will  be measured  and  paid  for  at  the  contract  unit  price  per  each  for 
DETECTABLE WARNINGS FOR PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS, FURNISH AND INSTALL which 
work  includes  furnishing  and  installing  the  detectable  warning  per  the 
manufacturer’s recommendations and as described herein.  

 
 



Village of Forest Park 
Forest Park 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project 

CBBEL Project No. 000023.00111 
Page 7 

 
 
 

 

TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION 
 
Construction  operations  shall  be  conducted  in  a manner  such  that  streets  will  be  open  to 
emergency  traffic and accessible as required  to  local  traffic  in accordance with  the applicable 
portions  of  Article  107.14  of  the  Standard  Specifications.    Removal  and  replacement  of 
driveways shall be planned so as to cause a minimum of inconvenience to the abutting property 
owners.   Temporary traffic control devices shall be  furnished and maintained as required and 
shall conform to the applicable portions of Section 701 of the Standard Specifications and the 
following highway standards: 
 

 Standard 701801‐03 
 

The work shall be accomplished such that the streets will be left open to local traffic at the end 
of each working day.    It will also be necessary  to provide advance notice  to residents, police, 
fire, school districts and trash haulers when access to any street will be temporarily closed or 
limited. 
 
During  construction,  the  Contractor  shall  provide  lighted  barricades,  flagmen  and  other 
temporary protection where necessary for public safety at all times.   Should traffic protection 
be determined to be inadequate by the Engineer or the Municipality, the Municipality will take 
the necessary  action  to protect  the public,  and  the  cost of  this work will be  charged  to  the 
Contractor. 
 
Temporary signs shall be erected to notify pedestrians:  “SIDEWALK CLOSED USE OTHER SIDE”.  
The signs shall be placed at both ends of the block or at the nearest accessible crossing, or as 
directed by the engineer. 
 
Method of Measurement and Basis of Payment 
This work will not be paid for separately but will be considered incidental to the contract. 

 



Village of Forest Park 
Forest Park 2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project 

CBBEL Project No. 000023.00111 
Page 8 

 
 
 
   

AGGREGATE FOR TEMPORARY ACCESS 
 
Description 
This work  shall consist of  the construction and maintenance of an aggregate base course  for 
maintaining access  to  intersecting  streets and driveways as  specified  in Article 107.09 of  the 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.  The CONTRACTOR shall provide access for all emergency vehicles 
and school buses, and to all abutting properties at all times during construction. 
 
Construction Requirements 
The  CONTRACTOR  shall  maintain  ingress  and  egress  to  all  abutting  properties  during 
construction operations.  Temporary driveways and entrances shall be constructed of aggregate 
in accordance with  the applicable portions of Section 351 of  the STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 
and  to  the dimensions determined by  the ENGINEER.   The coarse aggregate  shall be crushed 
stone or crushed gravel, gradation CA‐6. 
 
Maintenance shall consist of placing and compacting additional aggregate of the same type and 
gradation as the base aggregate. 
 
After  these  driveway  aprons  have  served  their  purpose,  the  suitable  aggregate  shall  be 
removed, and, at the direction and approval of the ENGINEER, utilized for other purposes, such 
as granular subbase, aggregate base course, and embankment construction or other driveway 
aprons  or  otherwise  disposed  of  as  specified  in  Article  202.03  of  the  STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS. 
 
Method of Measurement and Basis of Payment 
This work will not be paid for separately but will be considered incidental to the contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



ADDRESS DETAILS # of Squares Area (SF)
825 CIRCLE 2 50

7435 DIXON *SIDEWORK TOO 2 50

601 ELGIN 6 6 150

7242 JACKSON 4 4 100

1128 LATHROP 5 5 125

925 MARENGO 6 6 150

7638 ADAMS CARRIAGE WALK & CATWALK SINKING 2 50

1401 HARLEM 14TH ST SIDE 2 50

1401 ELGIN 14TH ST SIDE 2 50

900 LATHROP 2 50

508 MARENGO 2 50

7700 WILCOX ON JACKSON 2 50

7660 WILCOX ON JACKSON 2 50

326 LATHROP 2 50

1104 DUNLOP 2 50

901 DUNLOP 2 50

903 DUNLOP 2 50

1033 HANNAH 6 + CARRIAGE WALK 8 200

611 HANNAH 2 50

919 LATHROP 6‐7, POLK SIDE 7 175

1006 DUNLOP 7, TRIP HAZARD 7 175

812 CIRCLE 2 50

1037 LATHROP CARRIAGE WALK 2 50

1105 CIRCLE 2 2 50

902 FERDINAND 2 50

1131 HANNAH 2 50

7616 HARVARD 2 2 50

917 HANNAH 2 2 50

530 CIRCLE *SIDEWORK TOO 2 50

614 HANNAH CARRIAGE WALK SINKING 2 50

1101 HANNAH 2 ON HANNAH & 2 ON FILLMORE 4 100

1127 MARENGO 3 IN FRONT 3 75

1121 LATHROP SIDEWALK & CARRIAGE WALK SANK 3 75

910 DUNLOP SIDEWALK SQUARE ON DUNLOP 1 25

904 DUNLOP SIDEWALK SQUARE IN FRONT 1 25

1111 MARENGO CARRIAGE WALK SQUARE 1 25

7712 ADAMS INSTALL NEW CARRIAGE WALK 2 50

REPLACE UNEVEN SQUARE 1 25

447 MARENGO  2 50

7311 ADAMS 2 50

7624 MONROE 2 SQUARES IN FRONT 2 50

823 MARENGO 2 SQUARES IN FRONT 2 50

2825



1076758_1  

RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-22 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SPECIFICATIONS AND AUTHORIZING  
THE ADVERTISING OF BIDS FOR THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK  
VAN BUREN STREET MULTI-USE PATH IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, on September 24, 2020, the County of Cook (“Cook”) informed the Village 

of Forest Park (“Village”) that it had been selected for participation in the 2020 Invest in Cook 

Program; and 

WHEREAS, the County has agreed to award the Village up to Two Hundred Forty-Seven 

Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($247,500.00) toward Phase II engineering and construction 

costs for the Village’s Van Buren Street Multi-Use Path Improvement Project (the “Project”), 

total estimated costs to be Four Hundred Ninety-Five Thousand Dollars ($495,000.00); and 

WHEREAS, the proposed scope of work for the Project includes, but is not limited to, the 

construction of a ten (10) foot wide asphalt multi-use path along the west side of Van Buren 

Street from Madison Street to the existing parking area/path near the Chicago Transit Authority 

Blue Line Forest Park Transit Center; and 

WHEREAS, the Project’s multi-use path will connect the existing Illinois Prairie Path to 

the proposed Des Plaines River Trail extension; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village has undertaken to develop the plans and specifications for the 

Project; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village desires to approve certain specifications and advertisement for 

bids for the Project. 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Village Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Resolution are 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 Section 2. In the opinion of a majority of the corporate authorities of the Village, it is 

advisable, necessary and in the public interest that the Village approve the specifications for, 

advertise for bids and solicit bids for the Project. 

 Section 3. The Village Clerk and Village Engineer, Christopher B. Burke 

Engineering, Ltd., are hereby authorized and directed to cause an advertisement and to solicit 

bids, pursuant to the public bid process and in substantially the form of the “Local Public 



1076758_1  

Agency Formal Contract Proposal Bid Specifications for the Van Buren Street Multi-Use Path 

Improvements Project,” attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made a part hereof. 

 Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval in the manner provided by law. 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 25th 

day of July, 2022. 

AYES:  ___________________ 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 25th day of July, 2022. 
 
             
       ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this __________ day of July, 2022. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk  
  



1076758_1  

EXHIBIT "A" 

Local Public Agency Formal Contract Proposal Bid Specifications  
for the Van Buren Street Multi-Use Path Improvements Project 

 



















































































































Forest Park Chamber of Commerce & Development 
7331 W. Roosevelt Road 
Forest Park, IL 60130 
Phone (708) 366-2543 • Cell (708) 828-2158 
 
July 11, 2022 
 
Mayor Rory Hoskins            Commissioners 
Village of Forest Park            Village of Forest Park 
517 Desplaines Avenue           517 Desplaines Avenue 
Forest Park, IL 60130            Forest Park, IL 60130 
 
Dear Mayor Hoskins & Commissioners: 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Forest Park Chamber of Commerce, I am 
requesting permission to hang street banners to advertise the 10th annual Forest Park 
Casket Races to be held on Saturday, October 22. 
 
This family-friendly event is held on Beloit Avenue between Madison & Adams (the race 
course) and in the municipal parking lot behind Grand Appliance (team staging). The 
event incudes: 

• Parade of caskets and kids costume parade 
• 3-5 pop-up tents on Beloit for local businesses to provide coffee, hot chocolate, 

sweet treats & breakfast sandwiches   
• Casket Races (actual races start at 11) 
• A DJ who provides our sound system for race communication and announcements, 

and to play Halloween-themed music to add to the ambiance of the event (music 
would start after 9) 

• Trick or Treat on Madison following the races (12:30 to 2:30) 
 
Event set up begins about 7:30 am and the event usually runs until about 12:30 pm. As 
always, the Chamber will set up a meeting with police, fire, public works and Village 
administration to review details, and we would deliver notices to all the homes along the 
racecourse (many of which have house parties on race day).  
 
Please let me know if have any questions or concerns. Thanks for your continued support. 
 
P.S. We invite the police department, fire department, public works & village staff to form 
a team and join the races again! 
 
Cc/Moses Amedei, Village Administrator 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Laurie Kokenes 
Executive Director – Forest Park Chamber of Commerce 








